Study Area Code

<010> 300528

<015> Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL CD

<020> Program Year 2017

<030> Contact Name: Person USAC should contact s " .
with questions abaui this data ristopner Ulmer

<035> Contact Telephene Number: 6109283903 ext.
Number pt the person identitied in data line <030>

<039> Contact Email Address:

Emzil of the person identitied in data fine <030>

culmergicorelle, gom

Form Type

54.312 and 54.422
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<010>  Study Area Code 300588
<015>  Study Arez Name AYRRSVILLE TEL CO
<C20> _ Program Year 2017
<030>  Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christopher Ulmer
<035>  Contact Feleph Number - Number of persan identified in data line <030> 6109263903 ext.
<(3%> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data line <c30> culmersioorells . com
<130> Has your company received its ETC certification from the FCC? [yes/no) O @
if your answer to Line <110> 15 yes, do you have an existing §54.202{a) "5
<111> year plan” filed with the FCC? [yes /na) O O
if your answer to Line <111> is yes, please file a progress report, on line
112> delineating the status of your company's existing § 54.202(a) *S year
plan" on file with the FCC, as it relates to your provision of voice telephony
service. ' IC05BR0HI1Z . pat
112> Attach Five-Year Service Quality Improvement Pian or, in subsequent years,
your anhual progress report filed pursuant to 47 C.F.R. § 54.313(a){1}. fyour companyisa
CETC which only receives frozen support, your progress report is only
required 1o address voice telephony service.
Name of Attached Dosument
Ptease select the appropriate responses below [Yes, No, Not Applicable) to sonfirm
that the attached document{s}, on fine 112, contains a prograss report on its five-year
service quality improvement plan pursuant to 54.202{a). The information shall ba
submitied at the wire center level or census Block as appropriate.
«<113> Maps detailing progress towards meating plan targets Yes
<114> Report how much universa service (USF) support was received Yes
<115>  How much {USF) wes used to improve service quality and how support was used to improve service guality Yes
<116>  How much (USF} was used to improve service coverage and how support was used to improve saivice coverage  yes
<117>  How much (USF) was used to improve service capacity and how support was used fo improve setvice capacily Ves
<118> Pravide an explanation of netwark Imprevement targets not met ves

in the prior calendar year.
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<010>  Study Area Code 300538
<015>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL CO
<020>  Program Year 2017
<030>  Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christopher Ulmer
<035>  Contact Telephane Number - Number of person identifled In data llng <030> 109282903 exc.
<039  Centact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data line 030> culmereisorslic. som
<218> For the prior calendar year, were there any reportable vaice service cutages? ¥e
<220 <aw <b1> b2 <b3 <bf <cl> <C2> <d> <e> <fx <g> <hs
NORS Did This Qutage
Refersnce | Outage Start | Dutage Start | Dutage End | Outage End Number of 211 Facillties Service Oukage Affact Mualtiple
Number Date Time Date “Time Customers Affected| Total Number of Affected Description (theck Study Areas Service Outage Preventative
Customers (Yes / Mo} all that apply) {Yes / Na} Tuti Procedures
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<010>  Study Area Code 300588

<015»  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL co
<020+ Frogram Year 2017

<030> _Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christopher Vlmer
<035> _ Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line <030> 6109283202 ext.
<039>  Contact Email Address - Email Address of parsen identified in date line <030> culmerdicorellc.com

<300> Unfulfilled service request (voice)

° |

Name of Attached Document

«310> Detail on attempts (voice)

<320> Unfulfillad service request (broadband) I o |

«330> Detall on attempts (broadband)

Name of Attached Document
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<010>  Study Area Code 100838
<015>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL 0
<020>  Program Year
017
<030>  Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding thisdata
Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line
<Q35> 030> €109283507 mxt .
<030> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data line  cumerescoretic.con
<030> .
Select from the drop-down list to indicate how you would like to report
<q0p>  voice complaints (zero or greater) for voice telephony service in the prior  offered only fixed voice
calendar year for each service area in which you are designated an ETC for
any facilities you own, operate, lease, or otherwise utilize.
<410>  Complaints per 1000 customers for fixed voice 0.0
<420>  Complaints per 1000 customers for meblle vaice
Select from the drop-down list te indicate how you would like to report
<430 end-user customer complairts (zero or greater} for broadband servicein  Offered only fixed broadband
the prior calendar year for each service area in which you are designated
an ETC for any facilities you own, operate, lease, or otherwise utilize.
<440>  complaints per 1000 customers for fixed broadband 0.0
<450>

Complaints per 1000 customers for mobile broadband

Pages
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000 Eomplianée Wlh Serviee
Diata Colimction. B

<010>  Study Area Code 30058€

<Q2%>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL CO
<020>  Program Year 2017

«030>  Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christepher Ulmez

<35>  Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line <030> £102207503 ext.

<03%>  Contact Email Addrass - Email Address of person [dentified in data line <030 eulterricorellc. com

<500> Certlfy

with zpplicable service quallty and protectlon rules Yes

30058BOHS10.pdf
«510> Descriptive docurnent for Service Quality Standards & Consumer Protection Rules Compliance

Page &




<010>  Study Area Code Ivosea

<015> Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL €O
<f20>  Program Year 2017

<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact 1 ding this data Christopher Ulner
<035>  Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified In data ling €030» 5107882803 ext.
«D38>  Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data line <030>  enlwersicerelle com
<600> Certify compliance regarding ability to function in emergency situations Yes

<610

Descriptive document for Functionality in Emergency Situatiens

3C0S8ROHE10, pdf

Psge 7

Page 7




Page 8

<Di0>  Stucly Area Code 300568

<015>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL CO

<D20> Program Year 2017

<030 Coniact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christapher Ulmer

<035> Confact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line <030 SLOPZEIR0R ST
<039> Contact Email Address - Email Address cf person identified in data line <030 cukmergicorelle aom
<70%> Residential Local Service Charge Effective Date

<702=  Single State-wlde Residential Local Service Charge

<703>

State ) {SLEC) SAC {CETC) Rate Type Service Rate State Subscrber Line Charge | State Universal Service Fee

N Mendatury Extended mar

Service Charge

Total per line Rates and Fea:

See aftached worksheet
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<010>  Study Area Code 300586

<015+  Study Area Name AYEREVILLE TEL CO
<020> _ Program Year 2087
<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christophar Ulmez

£109282802 ext.

<035> __Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line <030
«<039> Contact Emait Address - Emall Address of person identified in data Ine <030>  culmerricorelle. com

<71l>
Broadband Service - Usage Allowance
State Regulated Download Speed Broadband Service - | Lisage Allowance Action Taken When
State Exchange [ILEC) Residential Rate Fees Total Rate and Feas |Mbs) Upload Speed [Mbps) [GB} Limit Reached {sefect}

See-atlached
soeleals ond
VUTROTTOCT
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<010>  Study Area Code 300564

<015>  Study Arez Name AYFRSVILLE TEL 0

<020>  Program Year 2017

<030>  Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christopher Ulmer

<035> {Contact Telephone Number - Numter of persen ideniified in data line <030>  ©109283502 ext.

<039> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person Identified In data Iine <030>  culmarsicorelle com

<@10> Reporting Carrier Ryarsville Telephone Cowpany

«<821» Holding Company Hot Applicable

<B12>  Operating C ¥ Ayarsville Telsphona Company

<B13> | e e s

Affiliates

SAC

Dping Business As Company or Brand Designation
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<010>  Study Area Code 30056k
D15 Study Area Name RYFRSVILLE TEL CO
<020>  Program Year 2017

<D30>  Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Chr; stophar Tlmer

<035> _ Contact Telephone Number - Number of persan identified in data ine <030> B108283503 axe.

<035>  Contact Email Address - Email Address of person Identified in data line <030:- culmersicorelic. cam

Ho

<300> Does the filing entity offer tribal land services? (Y/N)

<910>  Tribal Land(s) on which ETC Serves

<920>  Tribal Government Engagement Obligation

Name of Attached Document

"If your company serves Tribal lands, please select [Yes,No, NA) for each these boxes
te confirm the status described on the attached document(s), on ling 820,

demonstrates coordination with the Tribal government pursuant to Selecl
§54.313(a)(8] includes: Yes of No or
. ‘ Not Applicable

<821> Needs assessment and deployment planning with a focus on Tribal
. community anchor institutions.
922> Feasibillty and sustainability planning;

<923>  Marketing services in a culturally sensitive manner;

<924> Compliance with Rights of way processes

<925> Compliance with Land Use permitting reguirements
<926> Compliance with Facilities Siting rules

«927> Compliance with Environmental Raview processes
«928> Compliance with Cultural Preservation review processes

<928> Compliance with Tribal Busingss zpd Licensing reguirements.

Page 11
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Study Area Cade
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20D588
<015>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL CO
<020> Frogram Year 2017
<030>  Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christophar Ulmer
<035> Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line <D30> 6105283903 exc.
«039> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data line <030> culmersicerelic.com
<1000> Volce services rate comparability certification Yes
3005880H1010. pdf
<1010> Attach detailed description for voice services rate
comparability compliance
Name of Attached Document
Yee - Pricing is no mere than the most recent applicable kenchmark anncunced by
<1020> Broadband comparatility certification the Wireline Competition Bureau
<1030> Attach detailed description for broadband

cormparability compliance

Name of Attached Document

Page 12
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<010> Study Area Code 300588

<015> Study Area Name AYERSVILLE 7EL Co

<02D0> Program Year 28117

<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christopter Ulmer

<35> Contact Telephone Number - Number of perscn identified in data line <030> 6109293903 ext.

<03%> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data line <030>  cuimersicarelic.com
<1100> Certify whether terrestrial backhaul options exist {¥/N) Yes

«1130> Flease selsct the appropriate respanse (Yes, No, Not Applicable) to confirm the

reporting carrier offers broadband service of at least 1 Mbps downstream and 256 kbps

upstream within the supporied area pursuant to § 54.313(g).

Page 13
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<Q10>  Study Area Code ELIETL]

<Q15>  Study Area Name AYERSVIZLE TEL €0
<QzD> Program Year 01T

<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christopher Ulmer

(35> Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line <030> 100283903 exs .
<(39> Contact Email Address - Email Address of persan identified in data line <030>  .nipersicorelle com

3005840H1210. pdf

<1210> Terms & Conditicns of Voice Telephony Lifeline Plans

Name of Attached Decument

<1220>  Link to Public Website HTTP  www.ayersvitleteles.com

"“Please check these boxes below to confirm that the attached document(s], an line 1210,
or the website listed, on line 1220, contains the required information pursuant ta
§ 54.422(a){2) annual reporting for ETCs receiving low-income support, carriers must

annually report:

<1221> Information describing the terms and conditions of any voice E
telephony service plans offered to Lifeline subscribers,

<1222> Details on the number of minutes provided as part of the plan, I

<1223> Additicnal charges for toll calls, and rates for each such plan.

Page 14
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<010>  Study Area Code 200588

<D15>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL CO
<020> Program Year 2017

<030 Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regerding this data Chrigtopher Ulmer

<D35> Centact Telephene Number - Number of person identified in data line <030

TIDDZEIT0Y ext.

<039>  Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified th data line <036>  culmeriicorellc.com

Select the appropriate responses below [Yes, No, Not Applicable) to note compliance as a recipient of Incramental High Cost support, High Cost support to offset access charge reductions,

and Connect America Phase Il support as set forth in 47 CFR § 54.313(b),(c},{d}.(e). The information reporied on this form and in the documents attached below is accurate.

Incremental Connect Americe Phase | reporting

<2010>

<2011>

<2022>

<2023>

<2024A>

<20248>

<2025A>

<20258>

<2015>

2nd Year Certification 47 CFR § 54.313(b}(1){1) - Note that for the July 1
2016 certification, this applies to Round 2 recipients of Incremental
Support

3rd Year Certification 47 CFR § 54.313{b){1}{ii] - Note that for the July 1
2016 certification, this applies to Round 1 recipients of Incrementai
Support

Recipient certifies, representing year two after filing a notice of
acceptance of funding pursuant to 54.312(c), that the locations in
guestion are not receiving support under the Broadband Initiatives
Frogram or the Broadband Technology Opportunities Program for
projects that will provide broadbard with speeds of at least 4
Mhbps/1Mbps - 54.313(b){2)[1). Round 2 recipients only.

The attachment on line 2024 includes a statement of the total amount of
capital funding expended in the previous year in meeting Connect
America Phase  deployment obligations, accompanied by a list of census
blacks indicating where funding was spent. This covers year two -
54,313(b){(2)(ii). Round 2 recipients only.

Round 2 Recipient of Incremental Support?

Attach list of census blocks indicating where funding was spent in year
two - 54.313({b}(2)(ii}. Round 2 recipients only.
Round 1 or Round 2 Recipient of Incremental Support?

Attach geoccded Information for Phase | milestone reports (Round 1 for
year three and Round 2 for year two) - Connect America Fund , WC
Docket 10-90, Report and Order, FCC 13-

2016 and future Frozen Support Certification 47 CFR § 54.313(c)(4)

L 1

L ]

1

I

Name of Attached Document Listing
Required Information

— 1

Name of Attached Document Listing
Required Information

Page 15
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Price Cap Carrier Connect America ICC Support {47 CFR § 53.313{d}}

<2016>  Ceriification support used to build broadband I:l

Connect America Phase ll Reporting {47 CFR § 54.313(e)}

«2017A> Connect America Fund Phase Il recipient? I |

<2017B> Attach information for Phase il - 54.313(e}{1) - list of geocoded locations Name of Attached Document Listing
already meeting the 54.309 public interest obligations at the end of Required Information
calendar year 2015 and total amount of Fhase |l support, if any, the price

cap carrier used for capital expenditures in 2015,

<2018>  Attach the number, names, and addresses of community anchor Name of Attached Document Listing
institutions to which the carrier newly began providing access to Reguired information
broadband service in the preceding calendar year - 54.313{e){2}(ii}

<2019> Recipient certifies that it bid on category one telecommunications and
Internet access services in response to all FCC Form 470 postings seeking
broadband service that meets the connectivity targets for the schools and
libraries universal service support program for eligible schools and | |
libraries located within any area in a census block where the carrier is
receiving Phase || model-based support, and that such bids were at rates
reasonahly comparable to rates charged to eligible schools and libraries in
urban areas for comparable offerings - 54.313(e)(2)(v)

<2020>  Recipient certifies that it offered broadband meeting the requisite public : | |
interest obligations specified in §54.309 to 40% of its supported locations
in the state on December 31, 2017 - 54.313(e)(3)

<2021>  Recipient certifies that it offered broadband mesting the requisite public r i
interest obligations specified in §54.309 to 60% of its supported locations
in the state on December 31, 2018 - 54.313(e)(4)

<2026> Recipient certifies that it offered broadband meeting the requisite public
interest obligations specified in §54.309 to 80% of its supported locations l |
in the state on December 31, 2019 - 54.313(e){5}

<2027>  Recipient certifies that it offered broadband meeting the requisite public
interest obligations specified in §54.309 to 100% of its supported locations | I
in the state on December 31, 2020 - 54.313(e){6}

Page 16
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<010> Study Area Code 300588

<015 Study Area Name AYRRSVILLE TEL CQ
<020 Program Year 2017

<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Chri EtODhE]’.‘ Ulmer
<035> Contact Telephene Number - Number of persen identified in data iine <030> 6109283003 ext.

<039> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identéfied in data line <030 culmer@icorellc.com

e

Complete the items beiow to note compiiance with five year service quality plan (pursuant to 47 CFR § 54.202(a}} and, for privately held carriers, ensuring
compliance with the financial reporting requirements set forth in 47 CFR § 54.313(f)(2}). | further certify that the information reported on this form and in
‘the documents attached below is accurate. :

{2002)
{30104)
(30108}
(2012A)
(30128}

(3013}

(3014)

{3015)

{3016)

{3017)

{3018)

{3019)

{3620)

{3021)

{3022)

{3023)

{3024)

{3025)

{3026)

Frogress Report on 5 Year Plan
Carrier certifies to 54.313(f)(1){il1)

Milestone Certification {47 CFR & 54.313(f)(1)(i}}

Please Provide Attachment
Information

Community Anchor Institutions {47 CFR §

54,313(f)(1){ii}}

Please Provide Attachment

Information
|5 your company a Privately Held ROR Carrier {47 CFR [Yes/No)
§54.313(f)(2}}

f yes, does your company fite the RUS annual report (Yes/No)

Please check these boxes to confirm that the
attached PDF, on line 3017, contains the requirect
information pursuant to § 54.313(f}{2) compliance
requires:

Electronic copy of their annual RUS reports
(Operating Report for Telecommunications
Borrowers)

Document{s} with Balance Sheet, Income Statement
and Statemant of Cash Flows

If the response is ves on line 3014, attach your

Name of Attached Document Listing Required
Hp - He New Community Anchors

Name of Attached Document Listing Required

Name of Attached Document Listing Required

No ~ Attach Explarnation

30058B0H3N10b. pdf

® O
o ®

]
[ ]

company's RUS annual report and all required Information

documentation

IFthe response is no on line 3014, is your company [Yes/No) @ o
audited?

If the response is yas on line 3018, please check the
boxes below to confirm your submissicn an line
3026 pursuant to § 54.313(f}{2], contains:

Either a copy of their audited financial statement; or
(2) a financial report in 2 format ccmparable to RUS
Operating Report far Telecemmunlcations Borrowers
Document(s) for Balance Sheet, income Statement
and 5tatement of Cash Flows

Management letter and/or audit opinion issued by
the independent certified public accountant that
performed the company's financial audi.

If the response is no on line 3018, please check the
boxes below to confirm your submission on line
3026 pursuant to § 54.313(f)(2), contains:

Copy of their financial statement which has been
subject to review by an independent certified public
accountant; or 2) a financial report in a format
comparable to RUS Operating Report for
Telecommunications Borrowers

Underlying information subjected to a review by an
independent certifizd public accountant

Underlying information subjected te an officer
certification,

Document(s) for Balance Sheet, Income Statement
and Statement of Cash Flows

Attach the worksheet listing reguired information
Information

[ ]
L]
]
]

3005860H3026 . pdf

Name of Attached Document Listing Required
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<D10>  Siudy Area Code

30058E

<D15> Study Arsa Name

AYERSVILLE TEL CD

<020> Progrem Year

2017

<030> Contact Kame - Persen USAC should contact regarding this data

Christopher Ulmar

<035% _Contatt Telephone Number - Number of erson identified in data line <030

CI097H290% oxL.

<039> Contact Evmall Address - Emall Address of persan Identified in data llne <030

Winerdicorelle com

Finencial Data Summary

{3027) Revenue

{2022) Operating Expenses

{3029) Net Income

{303C) Telephohe Plant In Service{TFIS)
(3031) Total Assets

{3032) Total Debt
{3033) Total Equity
{3034) Dividends

Name of Attached Document Listing Requited Information

Page 18
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<010> Study Area Code 300568

«<015> Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL 0

<020> Program Year 2017

<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Sbristepher Tlner

<0355 Contact Telephone Numbet - Number of person identified in data line <030> SIORZBIFAI mE
<(39> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data line 030>  coimersicerelic.com

4005 Rural Broadband Experiment

Authorized Rural Broadband Experiment (RBE) recipients must addsess the certification far public interest obligations, provide a list of newly served
community anchar institutions, and pravide a list of locations where broadband has been deployed,

Public Interest Obligations — FCC 14-98 (paragraphs 26-29, 78)
Please address Line 4001 regarding compliance with the Comamission’s public interest obligations. All RBE participants must provide 2 response to Line 4001.

A4001. Recipient certifies that it is offering broadband to the identified locations meeting the requisite public
interest obligations consistent with the category for which they were selected, including breadband speed,
latency, usage capacity, and rates that zre reasonably comparable to rates for ¢comparable offerings inurban
areas?

Community Anchor Institutions - FCC 14-98 [paragraph 79)

4003a. RBE participants must provide the number, names, and addresses of community anchar institutions to
which they newiy deployed broadband service in the preceding calendar year. On this line, please respond
(ves — attach new community anchors, ne — ne new anchers) to indicate whether this list will be provided.

I yes to 40034, please provide a response for 40038,

4003b. Provide the number, names and addresses  Name of Attached Document Listing Required Information
of community anchor institutions to which the

recipient newly began providing access to

broadband service in the preceding calendar year.

Brpadband Deployment Locations - FCC 14-98 (paragraph 80)

4003a. Attach a list of peccoded locations to

which broadband has been deployed as of the

June 1st immediately preceding the July 1st filing  Narne of Attached Dacument Listing Required Information
deadiine for the FCC Form 481.

4004b. Attach evidence demonstrating that the

recipient is meeting the relevant public service

cbligations for the identified locations. Materialy

must at least detail the pricing, offered broadband  Name of Attached Document Listing Reguired Information
spead and data usage allowances available in the

relevant geographic arga,
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<Q10>  Study Area Code 360588

<015>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL CO
<020> Program Year 2017

<030> Contact Name - Persah USAC shoutd contact regarding this data Christcpher Ulmer

<035> Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line <030> 6103282503 ext.

<039% ' Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data ling <P30>  culmereicorellc.com

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE REPORTING CARRIER, IF THE REPORTING CARRIER IS FILING ANNUAL REPORTING ON ITS OWN BEHALF:

Certification of Officer as to the Accuracy of the Data Reported for the Annual Reporting for CAF or LI Recipients

|| certify that | am an officer of the reporting carrler; my responsibilities include ensuring the accuracy of the annual reporting requirements for universal service support
recipients; and, to the best of my knowledge, the information reported on this form and in any attachments is accurate,

[Name of Reporting Carrier:

Is'rgnature of Authorized Officer: Date

Printed name of Authorized Officer:

[Title or position of Authorized Officer:

frelephone number of Authorized Officer:

|5tudy Area Code of Reporting Carrier: Filing Due Date for this form:

Persons willfully making falsa statements on this form can be punished by fine or forfeiture under the Communications Act of 1934, 47 U.5.C. §§ 502, 503(b), ot fine of Impriscnment
under Title 18 of the United States Code, 18 U.S.C. § 1001,

Fage 20




Page 21

ipases

<010>  Study Area Code

<015>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL CO

<020> Program Year 2017

<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should cantact regarding this data Christopher Ulmer
6109283903 ext.

<035> Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified In data line <020>

«039>  Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in data line <030>  tulmerg@icoralle. com

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE REPORTING CARRIER, IF AN AGENT IS FILING ANNUAL REPORTS ON THE CARRIER'S BEHALF:

Certification of Officer to Authorize an Agent to File Annual Reports for CAF or LI Recipients on Behalf of Reporting Carrier

| cartify that {Name of Agent)__ICORE Consulting, LLC is authorized to submit the information reported on behalf of the reporting carrfer. |
alse certify that | am an officer of the reporting carrier; my responsibilities include ensuring the accuracy of the annual data reporting requirements provided to the authorlzed
agent; and, to the best of my knowtedge, the reports and data provided to the authorized agent is accurate.

Name of Autharized Agent:  ICORE Consulting, LLC

IName of Reparting Carrier: AYERSVILLE TEL CO

Signature of Authorized Officer: CERTIFIED ONLINE Date;  06/27/2016
Printed name of Autherized Officer:  Phillip Maag

Title or position of Authorized Officer:  Secretary-Treasurer & GM

Telephone number of Authorized Officer: 4183552222 ext.

§5tudy Area Codle of Reporting Cartier: 300588 Flling Due Date for this form:  07/01/2018

Persons willfully making false statements on this form can be punished by fine or forfeiture under the Communications Act of 1934, 47 U.5.C. §§ 502, 503{b}, or fine or impriscnment
under Title 18 of the United States Cede, 18 L.5.C. § 1001, .

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE AUTHORIZED AGENT:

Certification of Agent Authorized to File Annual Reports for CAF or Lt Recipients on Behalf of Reporting Carrier

|, as agent for the reporting carrier, certify that | am authorized to submit the annual reports for universal service support recipients on behalf of the reporting carrier; | have provided
the data reported herein based on data provided by the reporting carriar; and, to the best of my knowledge, the information reported herein is accurate.

IName of Reporting Carrier: AYERSVILLE TEL CO

IName of Authorized Agent Firm: ICORE Consulting, LLC
Signature of Authorized Agent or Employee of Agent: CERTIFIED ONLINE Date:  05/27/2016
Name of Authorized Agent Employee: Christopher Ulmer

Title or position of Authorized Agent ar Employee of Agent  Manager
Telephone number of Authorized Agent or Employee of Agent: 6109283903 ext.
15tudy Area Code of Reporting Carrier: - 300588 Filing Due Date for this form:’ 07/0172016

Persons willfully making false statements on this form can be punished by fine or forfeiture under the Communications Act of 1934, 47 U.S.C. §§ 502, 503(b), or fine or imprisonment under Title
18 of the United States Code, 18 U.5.C. § 1001,
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<010>  Study Area Code 300588

<015>  Study Area Name AYERSVILLE TEL 00
<020> _ Program Year 2017

<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christophar Ulmer
<035> Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data line <030> EL0%2F39D3 exs.
<039>  Contact Email Address - Email Address of persen identified in data line <020>  culmersicorslle.com
<701> Residential Local Service Charge Effective Date

<702>  Single State-wide Residential Local Service Charge _

<703>

Ex:hag&e [ILEC)
[ TRV RT RS T I e Aphane o8

SAC (CETC)

Resfdential Local
Service Rate

16.1

State Subscriber Line Charge
a0

1
&
Extended Area

Mandatory

State Unlversal Service Fes Service Charge Tota) per line Rates and Fee
0.0 o.p 16.1




<010>  Study Area Code 00568

<015>  Study Area Name LYEREVILLE TEL CD
<020> Program Year 2017

<030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Christophar Ulmer
<035» Cantact Teleph Number - Number of person fied in data line <030% 6109283002 ext.
<038>  Contact Email Address - Emall Address of person identified in data line <030= cuimeréicarellc.com
<711> T i

Usaga Allowance

Exch |LE| 14 State Total Rates Broadband Service - Broadband Service | W5a3ge Allowance
State change (ILEC) Download Speed G Action Taken
Rate Fees and Fees P Upload Speed (Mbps) (6B)
{Mbps) When Limit Reachad {select}
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oH Ty aphone o 38.28 0.0 19,05 2.0 v. 768 999939 2
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. =B

oH Hf:g:glecg_ 79.95 0.0 79.95 6.0 1.4 Sun9ss Gther, Unlimitad Daage

Ava: 111, Other, Unlimited Usage
o4 e heme o 59 95 00 85,45 2.0 1.0 FREEEES
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GH Telephona Co. 35.55 0.0 58. 95 0.0 1.0 995989 Unlimited Usage

aysrsville Other, Bundle Service with upte Speed -
oH Telephone Co. 85,95 a0 89,95 75.0 1.0 598909 Oriigltes Usnos Ath upte Spee
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CONFIDENTIAL

AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
FIVE YEAR SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN
JULY 1, 2016 PROGRESS REPORTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
On July 1, 2014, Ayersville Telephone Company, d/b/a Ayersville Communications ("Ayersville"

or "the Company") submitted a five year service improvement plan as required by 47 C.F.R. §54.202(a).
Ayersville operates a single exchange in northwestern Ohio. Consistent with 47 C.F.R. §54.313(a)(1), the

Company now submits its second progress report which reflects activities through December 2015.

At the time the five year service improvement plan was submitted, broadband service was defined
as a service with speed of 4 Mbps downstream and I Mbps upstream. The FCC’s action to change this
definition to 10 Mbps downstream and 1 Mbps upstream upon reasonable request was not reflected in the
initial plan. This report provides an agsessment of the Company’s achievements to date in network

investment to target the new, higher download speed requirement.

UNIVERSAL SERVICE SUPPORT / INVESTED

SERVICE CERTIFICATION
As set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 54.313(f{(1){i), the Company hereby certifies that it is taking reasonable

steps to provide upon reasonable request broadband service at actual speeds of at least 10 Mbps
downstream/1Mbps upstream. This service offers latency suitable for real-time applications, including
Voice over Internet Protocol. Usage capacity is reasonably comparable to comparable offerings in urban

areas and that requests for such service are met within a reasonable amount of time.

1 Allocation in compliance with reporting requirement addressing how federal USF was used by the Company per
47 C.F.R. § 54.313(A)(1).




CONFIDENTIAL

SERVICE PROGRESS - EXCHANGE MAP

Funds received from the universal service support mechanisms, in combination with all other revenue
streams will allow the Company to maintain and upgrade the existing broadband network. In the July 1,
2014 five-year plan, the level of 4/1 broadband availability within Ayersville was 100%. By investing in
fiber to the node network infrastructure, the Company presently can offer 10 Mbps / 1 Mbps to 100% of its

customers. The map below shows the Ayersville Telephone Company study area exchange boundaries.
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4901:1-6-01 Definitions Effective: 1/20/2011

As used within this chapter, these terms denote the following:

{A) "Alternative operator services (AOS)" means any intrastate operator-assisted services, other than
inmate operator services (108}, in which the customer and the end user are totally separate entities,
The AOS provider contracts with the customer to provide the ADS; however, the AOS provider does
not directly contract with the billed party to provide the services even though it is the billed party who
actually pays for the processing of the operator-assisted calis. A0S does not include coin-sent calls,

(B) "Alternative provider' includes a telephone company, including a wireless service provider, a
telecommunications carrter, and a provider of internet-protocol enabled services, including veoice over
internet protocol.

(C) "Basic local exchange service" (BLES) shall have the meaning set forth in division (A)(1) of section
4527.01 of the Revised Code.

(D) "Bundle or package of services" shall have the meaning set forth in division {A}(2) of section 4527.01
of the Revised Code.

(E) "Carrier access"” shall have the meaning set forth in division (A)(3) of section 4927.01 of the Revised
Code.

(F) "Commission" means the public utilities commission of Ohio.

(G) "Competitive eligible telecommunications carrier (CETC)" means a carrier, other than an incumbent
local exchange carrier, designated by a state commission as an eligible telecommunications carrier,

(H) "Competitive emergency services telecommunications carrier (CESTC)" means a telephone company
that is a S-1-1 system service provider that with respect to a service area, that was not an incumbent
9-1-1 system service provider on or after the date of enactment of the Telecommunications Act of
1996 (1996 act) or its successor or assignee of an incumbent local exchange.

(1) "Competitive local exchange carrier (CLEC)" means, with respect to a service area, any facilities-based
and nonfacilities-based local exchange carrier that was not an incumbent local exchange carrier on
the date of enactment of the 1996 act or is not an entity that, on or after such date of enactment,
became a successor or assignee of an incumbent local exchange carrier.

{(J) "Customer" means any person, firm, partnership, corporation, municipality, cooperative arganization,
government agency, etc., that agrees to purchase a telecommunications service and is responsible
for paying charges and for complying with the rules and regulations of the telephone company. For
purposes of this chapter, customer means a retail customer except where the term is specifically
designated within a rule to mean a wholesale customer of the telephone company.

(K) "Eligible telecommunications carrier (ETC)" means a carrier designated by a state commission as
defined in subpart C of FCC 47 C.F.R. 54.201.

(L)Y "Exchange area" means a geographical service area established by an incumbent local exchange
carrier and approved by the commission, which embraces a city, town, or village and a designated
surrounding or adjacent area, There are currently seven hundred thirty eight exchanges in the state.

{M) "Facilities-based CLEC" means, with a respect to a service area, any local exchange carrier that uses
facilities it owns, operates, manages or controls to provide basic local exchange setvices to
consumers on a common carrier basis; and that was not an incumbent local exchange carrier on the
date of the enactment of the 1996 act. Such carrier may partially or totally own, operate, manage or
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control such facilities. Carriers not included in such classification are carriers providing service(s)
solely by resale of the incumbent local exchange carmrier's local exchange services.

(N) "Federal poverty level" shall have the meaning set forth in division (A){4} of section 4827.01 of the
Revised Code.

(O) "Flat rate" service means unlimited number of local calls at a fixed charge.

(P} "Incumbent local exchange carrier (ILEC)" shall have the meaning set forth in division (A){5) of section
4927.01 of the Revised Code.

(Q) "Inmate operator services (I0S)" means any intrastate telecommunications service initiated from an
~ inmate telephone, i.e., a telephone instrument set aside by authorities of a secured correctional
facility for use by inmates or juvenile offenders.

{R) "Internet protocol-enabled services" shall have the meaning set forth in division {A)}6) of section
4927.01 of the Revised Code.

{S) "Large ILEC" means any |LEC serving fifty thousand or more access lines in Ohio.

(T) "Local exchange carrier” shall have the meaning set forth in division (A){7} of section 4927.01 of the
Revised Code.

{U} "Local service area” shall have the meaning set forth in division (A)(8) of section 4927.01 of the
Revised Code.

(V) "Nonresidential service”" means a telecommunication service primarity used for business, professional,
institutional or occupational use.

{W) "Postmark" means a mark, including a date, stamped or imprinted on a bill or a piece of mail which
serves to record the date of its mailing, which in no event shall be earlier than the date on which the
item is actually deposited in the mail. The postmark of a bill that is sent electronically must appear
on the electronic bill and shall in no event be earlier than the date which it is electronically sent.

(X) "Preferred carrier freeze" (PCF) means a service that prevents a change in a customer's preferred
carrier selection, unless the customer gives consent for such change to the carrier from whom the
freeze was requested.

(Y} "Provider of last resort" means an ILEC or successor telephone company that is required to provide
basic iocal exchange service on a reasonable and non-discriminatory basis to alt persons or entities
in its service area requesting that service as set forth in section 4927.11 of the Revised Code.

(Z) "Public safety answering point" (PSAP) means a facility to which 9-1-1 system calls for a specific
territory are initially routed for response and where personnel respond to specific requests for
emergency service by directly dispatching the appropriate emergency service provider, relaying a
message to the appropriate provider, or transferring the call to the appropriate provider.

(AA) "Regulated service" means service under the jurisdiction of the commission.

(BB) "Residential service” means a telecommunications service provided primarily for household use.

(CC) "Small business" shall have the meaning set forth in division (AX{9) of section 4927.01 of the Revised
Code.
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{(DD) "Tarif" means a schedule of rates, tolls, rentals, charges, classifications, and rules applicable to
services and equipment provided by a telephone company that has been filed or posted in such
places or in such manner as the commission orders.

{EE) "Telecommunications” shall have the meaning set forth in division {(A)(10} of section 4927.01 of the
Revised Code.

(FF) "Telecommunications carrier" shall have the meaning set forth in division (A)(11) of section 4927.01
of the Revised Code.

(GG) "Telecommunications relay service (TRS)" means intrastate transmissicn services that provide the
ability for an individual who has a hearing or speech impairment to engage in a communication by
wire or radio with a hearing individual in a manner that is functionally equivalent to the ability of an
individual, who does not have a hearing or speech impairment, to communicate using voice
communication services by wire or radio. TRS includes services that enable two-way communication
between an individual who uses a telecommunications device for the deaf or other nonvoice terminal
device and an individual who does not use such a device.

(HH) "Telecommunications service" shall have the meaning set forth in division (A){12) of section 4927.01
of the Revised Code.

(1) "Telephone company” shall have the meaning set forth in division (A}13) of section 4927.01 of the
Revised Code.

(JJ) "Telephone exchange service" shall have the meaning set forth in division (A)(14) of section 4927.01
of the Revised Caode.

(KK) "Telephone toll service" shall have the meaning set forth in division {A)(15) of section 4927.01 of the
Revised Code. ‘

(LL) "Traditional service area" means the area in which an ILEC provided basic local exchange service on
the date of enactment of the Telecommunications Act of 1986, 110 Stat. 60, 47 U.8.C. 153, and
includes any commission-approved changes to an ILEC's traditional service area after that date.

(MM) "Voice over internet protocol service™ (VolP) shall have the meaning set forth in division {(A){16) of
section 4927.01 of the Revised Code.

(NN) "Wireless service shall have the meaning set forth in division (A}(17) of section 4927.01 of the
Revised Code.

(C0) "Wireless service providet” shall have the meaning set forth in division (A)(18) of section 4827.01 of
the Revised Code.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:__11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4805.84, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.01

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 8/18/07, 12/29/05, 12/4/08
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4901:1-6-02 Purpose and Scope Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) The rules set forth in Chapter 4901:1-6 of the Administrative Code, apply to all incumbent local
exchange carriers (ILECs), competitive local exchange carriers (CLECs), and other providers of
telecommunication services, unless otherwise specified in this chapter or commission order.

(B) A wireless service provider and a reseller of wireless service are exempt from all rules in Chapter
4901:1-6 of the Administrative Code, except rules 4901:1-6-24 {wireless service provisions), 4901:1-
6-09, eligible telecommunications carrier (ETC), 4901:1-6-19, lifeline requirements for ETCs (where
the wireless service provider or reseller of wireless service has attained ETC status), and 4901:1-6-
36, telecommunications relay service.

{C) A provider of interconnected voice over internet protocol-enabled service is exempt from all rules in
Chapter 4901:1-8 of the Administrative Code, except for rule 4901:1-6-36 (TRS).

{D) A provider of any telecommunications service that is not commercially available as of September 13,
2010, and that employs technology that became available for commercial use only after September
13, 2010, is exempt from all rules set forth in Chapter 4901:1-6 of the Administrative Code, except for
rule 4901:1-6-36 (TRS), in the event such provider is subsequently required under federal law to
provide to its customers access to telecommunications relay service.

{E) The commission may, upon application or upon a motion filed by a party, waive any reguirement of
this chapter, for good cause shown, other than a requirement mandated by statute from which no
waiver is permitted.

(F) Any telephone company seeking a waiver(s) of rules contained in this chapter shall specify the period
of time for which it seeks such a waiver(s), and a detailed justification in the form of a motion fited in
accordance with rule 4901-1-12 of the Administrative Code.

{G) Waiver requests are not deemed to be granted unless approved by order of the commission. Waiver
requests made in proceedings which have an automatic approval time frame will toll any automatic
approval time frames set forth in rute 4801:1-6-05 of the Administrative Code.

(H) Each citation contained within this chapter that is made either to a section of the United States Code

or a regulation in the code of federal regulation is intended, and shall serve, to incorporate by
reference the particular version of the cited matter that was effective on September 13, 2010.

R.C. 118.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4905.04, 4927.03

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-03 Investigation and Monitaring Effective: 1/20/2011

Consistent with épplicable law, nothing contained within this chapter, shall in any way preclude the
commission or its staff from:

{A} Requiring a telephone company to furnish additional information necessary to carry out its authority
under Title 49 of the Revised Code.

(B) Monitoring a telephone company's compliance with the faw or any of the commission’s ruies and
orders.

(C) Initiating an investigation into & telephone company's compliance with the law or any of the
commission's rules and orders.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4827.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.20, 4927.21

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 8/18/07
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4901:1-6-04 Application and Notice Filings Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) For all applications required to be filed under this chapter, a telephone company shall use the most
up-to-date telecommunications filing form for telephone-related applications and notice filings. This
form may change from time-to-time without further commission entry. Commission staff will maintain
a current, updated copy to provide to applicants. The most recent version of the form will be posted
on the commission's web site.

(B) The applicant shall complete the telecommunications filing form in its entirety and supply all required
attachments and affidavits as outlined on the form,

(C) The telecommunications filing form shall be signed by counsel for the applicant, an officer of the
applicant, or an authorized agent of the applicant, and shall identify any agents or employees
authorized to make filings on behalf of the appiicant before the commission,

(D) Failure to utilize the current telecommunications filing form for any initial filing as well as failure to
include the required attachments as outlined on the form may result in immediate dismissal of the
application. The commission, the legal director, the deputy legal director, or an attorney examiner
has the authority to issue the entry dismissing an application under this rule.

(E} All amendments, motions, and other supplemental pleadings to an open case under these rules need
not use the telecommunications filing form, but must clearly state the case number such filings are in
reference to.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:__ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111,15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4527.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.03, 4927.15

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4801:1-6-05 Automatic Approval and Notice Filing Process Effective: 1/20/2011

{A) Many filings pursuant to the rules adopted in this chapter are subject to an automatic approvat process
ar a notice filing. With the exception of zero-day notices, an automatic time frame will begin on the
day after a filing is made with the commission's docketing division. Furthermore, under an automatic
approval process, if the commission does not take action before the expiration of the filing's
applicable time frame, the filing shall be deemed approved and become effective on the following
day, or later date if requested by the company. For example, a filing subject to a thirty-day process
will, absent suspension or other commission action, become effective on the thirty-first day after the
initial filing is made with the commission. Unless otherwise ordered, any motions not ruled upon by
the commission during the filing's applicable timeframe are deemed to be denied.

(B) A filing subject to the zero-day natice procedure will be effective on the same day the filing is made
with the commigsion, Notice filings are not considered to be commission-approved.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:_ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under; 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.03, 4927.15

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-06 Suspensions Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Unless otherwise provided in law, the commission, legal director, deputy legal director, or attorney
examiner may impose a full or partial suspension of any automatic approval process, natice filing, or
tariff approved pursuant to this chapter, if such filing is contrary to law or the nuies of the commission.

(B) Under this rule, if a tariff filing is contrary to law or the ruies of the commission, the commission may
require a telephone company to discontinue provision of the affected tariffed telecommunications
service(s) or, under partial suspension, cease offering the affected tariffed telecommunications
service(s) to new customers, or take other actions with regard to the affected service(s) as the
commission may require.

(C) Unless the law specifically precludes suspension of an automatic approval process, a pending
application under full or partial suspension will be automatically approved sixty days from the date of
suspension if all issues are resolved. If all issues are not resolved by the sixtieth day, the application
will be either dismissed by entry or suspended a second time. Any such second suspension shalt be
accompanied by notice to the applicant explaining the rationale for the additional suspension.
Applications under a second suspension cannot be approved without a commission entry or order.

{1} Under this paragraph, an application under full suspension is entirely precluded from 'taking
effect.

(2) Under this paragraph, an application under partial suspension is permitted to take effect, in part or
in s entirety, under the proposed terms and conditions, subject to further review by the
commission. The applicant is put on notice that the commission, subsequent to further review,
may modify the rates and/or terms and conditions of tariffed telecommunications service(s)
affected by the application.

(D) A full or partial suspension of tariffed telecommunications services may also be imposed, after an
application has been approved under the automatic approval process or is subject to a zero-day
notice filing, if an ex post facio determination is made that the tariff may not be in the public interest,
or is in violation of law or commission rules.

R.C. 118.032 Review Dates:___ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.18
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Ruie Ampiifies: 4927.17

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-07 Customer Notice Requirements Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Except for notices for abandonment or withdrawal of telecommunications service pursuant to rules
4901:1-6-26 and 4901:1-6-25 of the Administrative Code, respectively, and upward alterations of
basic local exchange service (BLES) rates pursuant to rule 4901:1-6-14 of the Administrative Code, a
telephone company shall provide at least fifteen days advance notice to its affected customers, of
any material change in the rates, terms, and conditions of a service and any change in the
company's operations that are not transparent to customers and may impact service. Customer
notice is not required for a decrease in rates,

(B) For abandonment or withdrawal of telecommunications service and upward alterations of BLES rates,
a telephone company shall provide at least thirty days advance notice to its affected customers in
accordance with rules 4901:1-6-26, 4901:1-6-25, and 4901:1-6-14 of the Administrative Code,
respectively.

(C) For every customer notice, a telephone company shall provide to the commission a copy of the actual
customer notice and an affidavit verifying that the customer notice was provided to affected
customers. A copy of the applicable customer notice must be provided to commission staff no later
than the date it is provided to customers by emailing the text of the customer notice to a commission-
provided electronic mailbox at: Telecomm-Rule07@puc.siate.oh.us,

(D) Every customer notice shall identify the name of the company or brand name familiar to the customer
(i.e. the company's "doing business as" name) and the company's customer service toll-free
telephone number and web site (if one exists), along with a clear description of the impact on the
customer. If the notice is informing a customer of a material change in the rates, terms, or conditions
of service, the notice shall also name the service offering being changed, a description of the change
including any increase in rate(s), the effective date of the change, and the company's contact
information.

{E) Notice shall be provided to affected customers in any reasonable manner, including bill insert, bill
message, direct mail, or, if the customer consents, electronic means.

(F} For change in operation applications filed pursuant to rule 4901:1-6-29 of the Administrative Code, the
customer notice must explain how the customer will be directly impacted by the application and what
customer action, if any, is necessary as a result of such application.

{G) At a minimum, the notice for a withdrawal or abandonment of service should provide the proposed
effective date of the service withdrawal, instructions to the customers on how they may obtain
replacement service(s), and the commission's toll-free and TTY-TDD telephone numbers.

{H) In the event that the commission staff determines that a notice provided to customers is not consistent

with the law or commission rules, the commission staff may require the company to re-notice
customers.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 492717

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 19/18/07
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4901:1-6-08 Telephone Company Certification Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Any telephone company desiring to offer telecommunication services in Ohic shall file an application
for certification {ACE) with the commission using the most up-to-date telecommunications filing form
available from the commission's web site. The telecommunications filing form shall be signed by
counsel far the applicant, an officer of the applicant, or an authorized agent of the applicant and shall
identify any agents or employees authorized to make filings on behalf of the applicant before the
commission. The form serves to identify the specific types of telecommunication services the
applicant wishes to offer, and to verify the applicant's commitment to comply with all applicable
commission rules and regulations.

(B) Paragraph (A} of this rule does not apply to any incumbent local exchange carrier (ILEC) with respect
to its geographic service area as that area existed on September 13, 2010. An ILEC or its holding
company seeking to operate outside of its geographic service area as that area existed on
September 13, 2010 shall file an application for certification.

(C) Certificate timeline

(1) Interested persons who can show good cause why such application should not be granted must
file with the commission a written statement detailing the reasons, as well as a motion to
intervene, within fifteen calendar days after the application is docketed. The applicant may
respond to any motion to intervene no later than seven calendar days after the filing and service
of the metion.

(2) Absent full or partial suspension, applications seeking certification as a telephone company will
be approved in accordance with the thirty-day automatic approval process described in rule
4901:1-6-05 of the Administrative Code.

{D} The commission's docketing division will assign a tariff filing (TRF) docket number, if applicable, and
inform the applicant of that number within fourteen days of filing so that the applicant may finalize its
tariff and price lists prior to the automatic approval date of the ACE. Failure to file all necessary tariff
revisions requested by commission staff prior to the thirtieth day from initial filing of the ACE
application will result in suspension or dismissal of the application. Final tariffs, where applicable,
must be filed in the ACE case as well as in the applicant's TRF docket no later than ten days after the
automatic approval date.

(E) Minimum information required to be filed by all applicants seeking certification as a telephone
company to operate in the state of Ohio shall include:;

{1} A certificate of good standing and a certificate to operate as an out-of-state entity issued by the
Ohio secretary of state and, if applicable, fictitious name authorization.

{2) The company's name and address, and if available, e-mail address and web site.
{3) The name of a contact person and that person's contact information.

{4) A general description and list of the types of telecommunications service(s) proposed to be
offered and a description of the general geographic area served (maps are not reguired).

{5) Verification that the applicant will follow federal communications commission (FCC) accounting
reguirements, if applicable.

{6) Documentation attesting to the applicant's satisfactory technical expertise relative to the proposed
service offering(s).
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(7} Documentation indicating the applicant's satisfactory corporate structure, managerial expertise,
and ownership.

(8) Information pertaining to any similar operations provided by the applicant in other states.

(9) Evidence of nctice to the Ohio department of taxation, public utilities tax division, of the
applicant's intenit to provide service.

(10} Any waivers sought by the applicant, submitted pursuant to rule 4901:1-6-02 of the
Administrative Code.

(11} Documentation attesting to the applicant's financial viability, including, at a minimum, an actual
and pro forma income statement and balance sheet.

(12} For competitive local exchange carriers (CLECs), a notarized affidavit signed by an authorized
employee and accompanied by the bona fide request for interconnection letter sent to the ILEC
that verifies that the applicant has entered into negotiations to establish an interconnection
and/or transport and termination agreements with, at a minimum, the ILEC(s) serving the
geographic area(s) where the applicant will be providing its services. If the agreements(s) have
already been filed with the commission for approval, the specific case numbers should be
stated. To the extent the agreements have not been filed, the applicant should state the
estimated timeframe for such filing. An applicant that intends to provide service to customers by
solely reselling the retail services of an underlying facilittes-based CLEC is exempt from this
requirement. A CLEC shail not start providing service before it files with the commission, for the
commission's approval, an interconnection and/or transport and termination agreement with the
ILEC and/cor a resale agreement with ancther CLEC as reguired pursuant to this rule.

(F) Additional requirements to be submitted by a telephone company seeking to offer basic local
exchange service (BLES) or other services required to be tariffed under Chapter 4527. of the
Revised Code and rule 4901:1-6-11 of the Administrative Code include:

(1) Proposed tariffs, including a full description of proposed services and operations as well as all
relevant terms and conditions for BLES and other reiail services set forth in rule 4901:1-6-11 of
the Administrative Code if offered to customers. Tariffs may incorporate by reference the
exchanges of an ILEC if the applicant is proposing to mirror the ILEC's local service areas in its
entirety. If an applicant is a facilities-based CLEC, it must provide a carrier-to-carrier tariff, which
at a minimum includes an access tariff. Other wholesale services set forth in rule 4901:1-6-11
of the Administrative Code, if offered to wholesale customers, must also be tariffed in its carrier-
to-carrier tariff,

(2) A list of the ILECs in whose territory the applicant intends to serve. If the applicant is not mirroring
an ILEC's entire local service area, the CLEC shall specifically define its local service area.

(3) Nothing precludes the staff of the commission from requiring additionat information consistent
with this chapter,

(G) Scope of operating authority

(1) The commission shall grant statewide operating authority to a telephone company seeking to
offer telecommunications services provided that the company meets the associated certification
requirements.

(2) A CLEC shall update its certification if it seeks to expand its operation within its siatewide
authorization subsequent to cerification. To do so, the CLEC must file in its TRF case a
notarized affidavit signed by an authorized employee verifying that the CLEC has an
interconnection and/or transport and termination traffic agreement with the ILEC serving the
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territory into which the CLEC intends to expand and identifying the specific case numbers in
which the agreements were filed. The CLEC must also file any tariff update, if applicable.

(H) The commission may suspend or reject the cerification application of a telephone company if it finds,
within thirty days after filing and based on the information provided in the application, that the
applicant lacks financial, technical, or managerial ability sufficient to provide adequate service to the
public consistent with law.

(I} Suspension or revocation of certificate

Nothing contained within these rules precludes the commission, after reasonable notice and an
opportunity to be heard, from suspending, rescinding or conditionally rescinding the certification of a
telephone company upon a demonstration that the company has engaged in a pattern of conduct in
violation of Ohio law. This includes the failure to comply with the rules of the commission, including
the failure to file the requisite annual reports and the failure to pay all corresponding assessments.

R.C. 112.032 Review Dates: 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under; 111.15
Statutory Authority: ~4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.05

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4501:1-6-09

Eligible Telecommunications Carriers Effective: 1/20/2011-

(A) Competitive eligible telecommunication carrier (CETC)

Pursuant to 47 U.S.C. 214(e), upon request and consistent with the public interest, convenience, and
necessity, the commission may, upon application, designate a CETC where that applicant meets the
requirements of 47 U.5.C. 214, 47 C.F.R. 54.201(d) and 47 C.F.R. 54.202. The commission may
subject such designation of CETC authority to additional conditions consistent with the public
interest, convenience, and necessity,

(B} In order to be designated a CETC pursuant to 47 U.S.C. 214(e), a facilities-based telephone company
must:

(1) File an application with the commission demonstrating its compliance with all federal and state
CETC and lifeline requirements pursuant to 47 C.F.R. 54.201 to 209, rule 4901:6-19 of the
Administrative Code, where applicable, and this rule,

{2) Telephone companies not previously designated as a CETC and requesting CETC authority,
shall file the application for CETC designation with the commission using the most up-to-date
telecommunications filing form and must include all completed exhibits as required by the filing
form. Commission staff will maintain a current, updated copy of the filing form with the list of
CETC required exhibits. The most recent version of the form will be posted on the commission's
website. An application for CETC designation shall be filed under a TP-UNC case purpose code
and shall not be subject to an automatic approval process. Rather, a CETC designation can be
granted only by a commission order approving such request.

(C) Eligible telecommunications carrier {ETC) reporting requirements

In order to be eligible for federal universal service funding in any given year, all ETCs, i.e., incumbent
local exchange carrier ETCs and CETCs, must comply with the following annual reporting
requirements:

(1) No later than August thirty-first of each year, an ETC receiving high cost funding must file an
affidavit with the commission stating that all federal high-cost support provided to the carrier for
service areas in Ohic will be used only for the provision, maintenance, and upgrading of
facilities and services for which the support was intended pursuant to 47 U.S.C, 254(e).

(2) No later than August thirty-first of each year, or a date otherwise designated by the universal
service administration company (USAC), an ETC receiving lifeline support must file a completed
copy of the federal communications commission (FCC) annual lifeline certification and
verification affidavit, that is submitted to USAC, with the commission.

{D) Revocation or relinquishment of ETC designation

(1} The commission may revoke, consistent with commission and FCC rules and regulations, an
ETC designation if it finds that the company has failed to comply with any state or federal ETC
requirements, including the failure to pay all corresponding assessments.

(2} An ETC may seek to relinguish its ETC designation for an area pursuant to 47 C.F.R. 54.205
through the filing of @ nonautomatic application with the commission under the case purpose
code TP-UNC. An ETC will not be relieved of its ETC designation until the commission issues
an order granting the request.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates: 11/30/2015
Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
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Competitive Emergency Services Telecommunications

4901:1-6-10 Effective: 1/20/2011

Carrier Certification

{A) An applicant seeking authority as a competitive emergency services telecommunications carrier
(CESTC) in the state of Ohip, must submit an application for certification (ACE) with the items set
forth in paragraph (E) of rule 4901:1-6-08 of the Adminisirative Code and any additional items
requested by commission staff. A competitive local exchange carrier, or an incumbent local
exchange carrier operating outside of its traditional service area, seeking to offer CESTC service,
subsequent to initial certification, shall file a thirty-day ACE seeking CESTC authority with a
proposed CESTC tariff and any additional items requested by commission staff,

(B) Certificate timeline

{1} Interested entities who can show good cause why such application should not be granted must
file with the commission a written statement detailing the reasons, as well as a motion to
intervene, within fifteen calendar days after the application is docketed. The applicant shall
respond to any motion to intervene within seven calendar days after the filing and service of the
motion.

(2) Absent full or partial suspension, applications seeking certification as a CESTC will be approved
in accordance with the thirty-day automatic approval process described in rule 4801:1-6-05 of
the Administrative Code.

(C) A CESTC may not operate as a 9-1-1 system service provider until such time as the county has
amended its 9-1-1 plan to identify that carrier as the 9-1-1 carrier of choice for a public safety
answering point (PSAP)(s) serving end users in that county for the designated telecommunications
traffic.

(D) A CESTC authorized to act as a 9-1-1 system service provider to a PSAP must carry all calls for that
PSAP for those services designated to it by the PSAP. In addition to the ILEC, there may be no more
than one CESTC designated by the PSAP as set forth in the approved county plan.

{E) Once the county plan has been amended, a CESTC shall update its tariff to reflect the PSAP(s)
served by the CESTC and which type of telecommunications traffic will be provided to that PSAP.
Contracts between a CESTC and all individual counties for the provision of emergency service to a
PSAP(s) within that county shall be submitted to the state of Ohio's 9-1-1 coordinator,

(F) A CESTC shall interconnect with each PSAP in a county and adjacent 9-1-1 systems across county
lines to ensure transferability of all 9-1-1/E9-1-1 calls.

{G) The commission shall grant a CESTC, statewide operating authority provided the company meets the
associated certification requirements. As a CESTC seeks to expand its operation within its statewide
autherization, it must update its tariff by filing, in its TRF case, an up-to-date list of the counties in
which the CESTC is actually provisioning service.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:__ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.15

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-11 Tariff Services Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Services required to be tariffed
(1) The rates, terms, and conditions for 9-1-1 service provided in this state by a telephone company
or a telecommunications carrier, and for each of the following provided by a telephone company,
shall be approved and tariffed by the commission and shall be subject to all applicable laws,
including rules or regulations adopted and orders issued by the commission or the federal
communications commission, and including, as to 9-1-1 service, sections 4931.40 to 4931.70
and 4931.99 of the Revised Code:

(a) Basic local exchange service (BLES), including BLES installation and reconnection fees and
lifeline service rates or discounts.

{b) Carrier access.

{c) N-1-1 service.

(d) Pole attachments and conduit occupancy under section 4905.71 of the Revised Code.
(e) Pay telephone access lines.

(f) Toll presubscription.

(g) Excess construction charges.

(h) Inmate operator services.

(i) Telecommunications relay service.

{2) All other telecommunications services offered by a telephone company shall not be included in
tariffs filed with the commission, but shall still be subject to commission oversight and regulation
as provided in Chapter 4827. of the Revised Code and Chapter 4901:1-6 of the Administrative
Code.

(B) Tariffing requirements

All tariffs for services reguired to be tariffied under paragraph (A) of this rule, shall include both the

appropriate issued (the date the tariff was filed with the commission} and effective (the date the

service(s) will be offered) dates. All tariffs shall include, at a minimum, the following elements:

{1} Atitle page and a table of contents.

{2} A description of all services offered along with all terms and conditions associated with the
provision of each service.

{3} For BLES, a description of the actual BLES local service area in which a customer may complete
.a call without incurring a toll charge. Any change to a local service area must be reflected in the
tariff on file with the commission.

(4) A complete list of rates, relative to the provision of each service.
{5) For BLES, a statement informing customers that all telephone companies offering BLES are

subject to the commission's service requirements for BLES found in rule 4901:1-6-12 of the
Administrative Code,
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(6) For tariffs filed requiring prior commission approval, each final tariff sheet must exhibit the
commission authority by designating the case number in which the tariff was approved, the
automatic date of effectiveness or commission order date, the effective date of the tariff sheet,
the name of the telephone company, and the name of an officer of the telephone company. This
information should be included in a header, a footer, or a combination thereof.

(7} For tariffs filed pursuant to a zero-day notice filing, each final tariff shest should include the
effective date of the tariff sheet, the name of the telephone company, and the name of an officer
of the telephone company, This information shouid be inciuded in a header, a footer, or a
combination thereof.

(C) Tariff filing (TRF) docket

(1) The commission shall maintain and designate for each telephone company offering tariffed
telecommunications services a TRF docket for the filing of final tariffs and filings subject toa
zero-day notice procedure.

(2) The docketing division will assign a TRF docket number when a telephone company seeks to
obtain initial certification.

(3) For applications in which new or revised tariff pages are involved, such tariff page(s) shall be filed
in final form in the TRF docket and include the appropriate application purpose code, where
applicable. For filings subject to a zero-day notice procedure, such notice shall include a filing
form, description of filing request, final tariff pages, and, if applicable, a customer notice. For
nonautomatic applications and those applications subject to an automatic approval process
{other than the zero-day notice process), final tariff pages must be filed within ten calendar days
after the approval date. The effective date on the tariffs shall be a date no sooner than the date
the final tariffs are filed with the commission.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates: _ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.15

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-12 Service Requirements for BLES Effective: 1/20/2011

{A) A local exchange carrier {LEC) providing basic local exchange service (BLES} shall conduct its
operations so as to ensure that the service is available, adeguate, and reliable consistent with
applicable industry standards.

{B) The fact that a LEC providing BLES fails to comply with any provision(s) within this chapter, or with
other applicable federal or state telecommunications law, does not by itself constituie inadequate
service as a matter of law, Rather, the guestion as to whether BLES is legally inadequate requires a
formal determination by the commission, preceded by a hearing pursuant to section 4927.21 of the
Revised Code unless the hearing is waived by the complainant and the respondent.

(C) A LEC shall provide BLES pursuant to the following standards:

(1) BLES shall be installed within five business days of the receipt by a telephone company of a
completed application for new access line service, unless the customer reguests or agrees to a
Iater date.

{(2) The requirement to install BLES in paragraph (C){(1) of this rule is not applicable where any of the
following exist:

(a} A customer or applicant has not met pertinent tariff requirements.
(b} The need for special equipment or service.

(c) Military action, war, insurrection, riot, or strike,

(d) The customer misses an installation appointment.

(3) A LEC shall make reasonable efforis o repair a BLES outage within twenty-four hours, excluding
Sundays and legal holidays, after the outage is reported to the telephone company.

(4) A BLES service outage or service-affecting probiem shall be repaired within seventy-two hours
after it is reported to the telephone company.

(5) If a BLES outage is reported to the telephone company and lasts more than seventy-two hours,
the LEC shall credit every affected BLES customer, of which the LEC is aware, in the amount of
one month's charges for BLES.

() The customer credit in paragraph (C){5} of this rule is not applicable if the condition or failure 1o
repair occurs as a result of any of the following:

{a) A customer’s negligent or willful act.
{b} Malfunction of customer-owned telephone equipment or inside wire.
{c) Military action, war, insurrection, riot, or strike.
{d) Customer missing a repair appointment.
(7) No LEC shall establish a due date for payment earier than fourteen consecutive days after the
date the bill is postmarked for a bill for BLES provided to customers. The postmark date may

appear on the bill rather than on the envelope, as long as the postmark date is never eatlier than
the date the bill actually enters the mail.
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{8) A LEC may disconnect BLES for nonpayment of any amount past due on a billed account not
earlier than fourteen days after the due date of the customer's bill, provided that the customer is
given notice of the disconnection seven days before the disconnection.

{9} Such notice of disconnection may be included on the customer's next bill, provided the bill is
postmarked at least seven days prior to the date of disconnection of service reflected on the bill,
and provided that the disconnection language is clearly highlighted such that it stands apart
from the customer's regular bill language. The natice shall identify the total dollar amount that
must be paid to maintain BLES, the earliest date disconnection may occur, and the following
statement:

"If you have a complaint in regard to this disconnection notice that cannot be resolved after you
have called {name of the utility), or for general utility information, residential and business
customers may contact the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio for assistance at 1-800-686-
7826 (toll free) or for TTY at 1-800-686-1570 (icll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or
at www.puco.chio.gov."

For residential disconnection notices, the text shall also inciude:

"Residential customers may also contact the Ohio Consumers' Counsel for assistance with
complaints and utility issues at 1-877-742-5622 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays,
or at www.pickocc.org."

{10y A LEC may require a deposit, not to exceed two hundred thirty percent of a reasonable estimate
of one month's service charges, for the installation of BLES for any person that it determines, in
its discretion, is not creditworthy.

(11} A LEC shall, unless prevented from doing so by circumstances beyond the telephene company's
control or uniess the customer requests otherwise, reconnect a customer whose basic local
exchange service was disconnected for nonpayment of past due charges not later than one
business day after the day the earlier of the following occurs:

(a) The receipt by the LEC of the full amount of past due charges.

(b) The receipt by the LEC of the first payment under a mutually agreed upon payment
arrangement,

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.08

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-13 Warm Line Service Effective: 1/20/2011

Every telephone company providing telephone exchange service shafl maintain access to 9-1-1 service
on a residential customer's line for a minimum of fourteen consecutive days immediately following any
disconnection for nonpayment of a customer's telephone exchange service.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:__ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Ampilifies: 4927.09

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03
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4901:1-6-14 BLES Pricing Parameters Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Rates for basic local exchange service (BLES) offered by a local exchange company (LEC) shall be
subject to the tariff requirements and pricing constraints set forth in this rule.

(B} BLES regulatory framework

(1) BLES shall only be offered by LECs pursuant to approved tariffs on file with the commission. A
LEC offering BLES shall maintain a complete, up-to-date tariff on file at the offices of the
commission at all t:mes :

(2) The tarn‘f for BLES shall contain aII rates, terms, and condltlons for BLES and installation and
reconnection fees for BLES.

(3) The BLES pricing fiexibility for ILECs set forth in this rule shali be applied to the monthly recurring
rates for the network access line component or equivalent of a single residential BLES line or a
primary small business BLES line.

(4) BLES is considered BLES for purposes of these rules regardiess of what other a la carte services
and features to which a customer may subscribe.

(5) A bundle or package of telecommunications services which includes telephone exchange service
15 not subject to the pricing constraints contained in paragraph (C) of this rule and section
4927.12 of the Revised Code and may be priced at market-based rates.

{6) An incumbent local exchange carrier (ILEC) offering BLES outside of its traditional service area or
a competitive local exchange carrier (CLEC) affiliate of an ILEC offering BLES within or outside
of that ILEC's traditional service area shall follow all BLES rules in this chapter that are
applicable to CLECs offering BLES.

(C) For-profit ILEC BLES pricing flexibility

{1) Upon not less than thirty day's notice, pursuant to paragraph (F)( 5) of this rule, a for-prefit ILEC
may increase its rates for BLES:

{a) K the ILEC, within twelve months prior to September 13, 2010, increased the ILECs' rates
for BLES for the exchange area, both of the following apply:

(i) The ILEC may not alter its rates for BLES for the exchange area upward by any amount
during the period that ends twelve months afier the date of the last increase of the
rates for BLES.

(i) In no event may the [LEC during the twelve-month period that begins immediately after
the end date of the period described in paragraph {C)(1)(a)(i} of this rule, and during
any subsequent twelve-month periad, alter the ILEC's monthly rates for BLES upward
for an exchange area by more than aone dollar and twenty-five cents.

(b) If the ILEC did not, within twelve months pricr to September 13, 2010, increase the ILEC's
rates for BLES for an exchange area, and if the commission has made a prior
determination that the exchange area qualified for alternative regulation of BLES under
Chapter 4801:1-4 of the Administrative Code, as that chapter existed on September 13,
2010, in no event may the ILEC, during the twelve-month period that begins on September
13, 2010, and during any subsequent twelve-month period, alter the ILEC's monthly rates
for BLES upward for the exchange area by more than one dollar and twenty-five cents.
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{c} If the commission has not made a prior determination that the exchange area qualified for
alternative regulation of BLES under Chapter 4901:1-4, of the Administrative Code, as that
chapter existed on September 13, 2010, an ILEC may not alter its rates for BLES upward
for that exchange area unless the |LEC first applies to the commission and the commission
determines that the application demonstrates that two or more alternative providers offer, in
the exchange area, competing service to the BLES offered by the ILEC in the exchange
area, regardless of the technology and facilities used by the altemative provider, the
alternative provider's location, and the extent of the alternative provider's service area
within the exchange area.

(i) Upon the filing of an application under paragraph (C)(1)(c) of this rule pursuantto a BLS
case purpose code, the commission shall be deemed to have found that the
application meets the requirements of that paragraph unless the commission, within
thirty days after the filing of an application, issues an order finding that the
requirements have not been met.

(ii) In no event may an ILEC that applies to the commission under paragraph (C)(1)(c) of
this rule, during the twelve-month period that begins on the thirty-first day after the
company files the application, and during any subsequent twelve-month petiod, alter
the carrier's monthly rates for BLES upward for the exchange area to which the
application applies by more than one dollar and twenty-five cents.

{2) Banking

Any rate increase allowed by this rule that is not used during a twelve-month period by a for-
profit ILEC may not be used in any subsequent year.

{D) Not-for profit ILEC pricing flexibility.

At any time, and upon no less than thirty days’ notice pursuant to paragraph-(F){(5) of this rule, a not-
for-profit mutual ILEC may increase its rates for BLES by any amount.

{E) In no event may an ILEC, before January 1, 2012, alter its rates for BLES upward for a customer
receiving lifeline service.

{F} ILEC BLES application, process, and notice

(1) If the commission has not made a prior determination that the exchange area qualified for
alternative regulation of BLES under Chapter 4901;7-4 of the Administrative Code, as that
chapter existed on September 13, 2010, a for-profit ILEC must file an application seeking
approval to obtain BLES pricing flexibility as set forth in paragraph (C)(1)(c){i) of this rule, using
the most up-to-date telecommunications filing form, under the case purpose code TP-BLS.

(2) A for-profit ILEC shall establish or maintain a tariffed rate cap for BLES consistent with
paragraphs (CY(T)Xa)(ii}, (C)(1)(b), and (C){1){c¥ii} of this rule. Such ILECs shall file an updated
tariff, for each exchange area with BLES pricing flexibility, at the end of each exchange's twelve-
month period, to reflect the new anniversary date and, as necessary, the new tariffed rate cap
for BLES, Such tariff shall be filed as a zero-day tariff amendment (ZTA).

(3) A for-profit ILEC's BLES price change(s) below its annual tariffed cap for BLES is subject to a
zero-day notice filing under the company's tariff filing (TRF) docket.

(4) A not-for-profit ILEC's BLES rates may be established and changed in its tariff pursuant to a zero-
day notice filing under the company's tariff filing (TRF) docket.
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(5) Increases in an ILEC's BLES rates pursuant to paragraphs (C) and (D} of this rule require
customer notice, consistent with the reguirements of rule 4901;1-6-07 of the Administrative
Code, 10 all affected customers, including OCC if residential BLES is involved, not less than
thirty days prior to the rate increase. A copy of the applicable customer notice must be provided
to commission staff no later than the date it is provided to customers by emailing the text of the
customer nofice to a commission-provided electronic mailbox at: Telecomm-
Rule07@puc.state.oh.us.

(G} CLEC BLES pricing flexibility, pracess, and notice:
(1) CLECs may establish the tariffed rate(s) for any BLES offerings based on the marketplace.

(2) A CLEC's BLES rate change(s) is subject to a zero-day notice filing under the company's tariff
filing (TRF) docket.

{3y A CLEC may increase its BLES rates on no less than thirty days' written notice to affected
customers, including OCC if residential BLES is involved. Such increases require customer
notice consistent with the requirements of rule 4901:1-8-07 of the Administrative Code. A copy
of the applicable customer notice must be provided te commission staff no later than the date it
is provided to customers by emailing the text of the customer notice to a commission-provided
electronic mailbox at: Telecomm-Rule07@puc.state.oh.us.

(H) New services, change in terms and conditions and expansion of local service area

{1) In order to introduce BLES or for an expansion of a local service area, a LEC must docket a zero-
day notice filing (ZTA) with the commission to amend its tariff, in accordance with the process
set forth in rule 4801:1-6-04 of the Administrative Code. The ZTA will take effect in accordance
with paragraph (B) of rule 4801:1-6-05 of the Administrative Code.

(2} Material changes in terms and conditions of an existing BLES by a LEC, including the introduction
of a nonrecurring service charge, surcharge or fee to BLES by a CLEC, shali be filed through a
thirty-day application for tariff amendment (ATA) filing. A standard of reasonableness will be
applied to these charges including, but not limited o, a comparison with similar charges
previously approved by the commission and similar charges assessed by other providers. Such
application requires a customer notice to be filed in accordance with rule 4901:1-6-07 of the
Administrative Code.

(1} BLES late payment charges

Late payment charges for BLES may be introduced or increased through a thirty-day ATA filing. A
standard of reasonableness will be applied to late payment charges including, but not limited to, a
comparison with similar charges previously approved by the commission and similar charges
assessed by non-regulated providers. Such application requires a customer notice to be filed in
accordance with rule 4901:1-6-07 of the Administrative Code.

(J) BLES installaticn and reconnection fees
Any ILEC nonrecurring service charges for installation and reconnection of a single residential or
primary business BLES line shall be included in the BLES tariff and will continue to be capped at the
tariffed rates for such charges in existence as of September 13, 2010.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under; 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies; 4927.12

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-15 Directory information Effective: 1/20/2011

(A} A local exchange carrier (LEC) providing basic local exchange service (BLES) shall make available to
its customers at no additional charge a telephone directory in any reascnable format, including but
not limited to a prinied directory, an electronic directory accessible on the internet or available on a
computer disc, or free directory assistance. The telephone directory shall inciude all published
telephone numbers in current use within the ILEC local calling area, including numbers for an
emergency such as 9-1-1, the local police, the state highway patrol, the county sheriff and fire
departments, the Ohio relay service, operator service, and directory assistance.

(B) Upon customer request, a LEC providing BLES shall make available to BLES customers the option to
have a printed directory at no additional charge.

{C) A LEC providing BLES shall also provide its BLES customers with a free listing in that directory, with
reasonable accommodations made for private listings.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies:; 4927.01

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-16 Unfair or Deceptive Acts and Practices Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Telephone companies shall not commit any unfair or deceptive act or practice in connection with the
offering or provision of any telecommunications service in this state,

{B) A failure to comply with any of the following requirements in connection with the offering or provision of
any telecommunications service shall constitute an unfair or deceptive act or practice by a telephone
company:

{1} Any communication by a telephone company, including but net limited, to solicitations, offers,
contract terms and conditions, or customer agreements, as well as any other communications
whether written or oral, shall be truthful, clear, conspicuous, and accurate in:

(a} Disclosing applicable information, including but not limited to: material terms and conditions,
material limitations, contract length, prices, fees, features, rates, termination fees or
penalties, discretionary charges, government mandated charges, and estimated taxes for
services offered.

(b) Identifying, in written or printed advertising or promotional literature, any material exclusions,
reservations, limitations, modifications, or conditions, which must be located in close
proximity to the operative words in the solicitation, offer, or marketing materiais.

(2} Telephone companies shall disclose the company's name and contact information on any written
service solicitation, marketing material, offer, contracts, or agreement, as well as on any written
response to a service~-related inquiry or complaint the company receives from a customer or
others.

(3) Local exchange carriers (LECs) shall inform customers calling the company to report a service
outage or service problem of their rights and responsibilities concerning the repair and
maintenance of customer-owned equipment, inside wire, and the use of a network interface
device (NID) to test for service problems. During such call, the LEC must notify the customer of
any charges that the company imposes for a diagnostic visit.

(4) In the event a NID is not in place, the LEC shall inform a customer calling to report a service
outage or service problem that the LEC is required to visit the customer premise at no charge to
diagnose whether service difficulties exist with network wire or inside wire.

(5} As applicable, and in any reasonable manner, a LEC shall provide customers a description of the
NID. That description shall include: all customer options for repairing inside wire; the function
and probable location of a NID; and an explanation as to how to use a NID to test for service
problems. The explanation shall also detail the customer's rights and responsibilities concerning
NID installation if a NID is not present on the premise and the customer's responsibility to utilize
a NID to diagnose service problems or risk a service fee, '

(C) Nothing in this rule precludes the commission from finding additional acts or practices, in addition to
those identified in paragraph (B) of this rule, to constitute an unfair or deceptive act or practice in
connection with the offering or provision of telecommunications service in this state either through
rulemaking under section 4927.03 of the Revised Code or through an adjudication under section
4927.21 of the Revised Code. The commission shall provide notice to all telephone companies of
such adjudications. No telephone company is liable for damages or forfeitures for engaging in any
act, practice, or omission for which it does not have prior notice either under paragraph (B} of this
rule, or through ancther rulemaking under section 4927.03 of the Revised Code, or an adjudication
under section 4927.21 of the Revised Code, that engaging in such act or practice is an unfair or
deceptive act. This does not preclude the commission, however, from crdering an appropriate
customer credit or remedy for a complainant in the context of an adjudication of an individual
complaint, if the commission determines that the company has committed an unfair or deceptive act
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ar practice against that complainant. In the absence of prior notice that an act or practice is unfair or
deceptive under paragraph (B) of this rule, or through rulemaking under section 4927.03 of the
Revised Code, or an adjudication under section 4927.21 of the Revised Code, the commission shall
allow the company adequate time to implement any procedures or practices the commission
determines appropriate to remedy the violation. '

(D) Telephone companies shall upon request of any applicant or customer, either inform the applicant or
customer of, or make available at no charge, a copy of its credit and deposit policies.

(E) Telephone companies in possession of customer proprietary network information shall protect
customer information in accordance with 47 U.S.C. 222 and in accordance with the rules and
procedures prescribed by the federal communications commission at 47 C.F.R. 64.2001 to 64.2011.

(F) Telephone companies that furnish credit information acquired from their own experiences with
customers to consumer reporting agencies must comply with the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act.

(G} Telephone companies that provide alternative operator services (AOS) shall provide the same
consumer information and protections to intrastate callers or billed parties as required for interstate
AOS in accordance with 47 C.F.R. 64.703. A failure of a telephone company to do so shall constitute
an unfair or deceptive act or practice.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under; 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.03

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, ©/18/07
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4901:1-6-17 Truth in Billing Requirements Effectiver 1/20/2011

(A) Every telephone company shall comply with the federal communications commission's truth in billing
requirements in 47 C.F.R. 64.201 and shall, in conformance with those requirements, accurately
identify on every bill all services rendered, the providers of those services, and all billed charges,
fees, and taxes so that they are ciear and not misleading.

{B) Every customer's bill shall include a statement that customers with bill questions or complaints should
contact the telephone company first, as well as the following text:

"If your complaint is not resolved after you have called {(name of the utility), or for general utility -
information, residential and business customers may contact the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
for assistance at 1-800-686-7826 (toll free) or for TTY at 1-800-686-1570 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m. weekdays, or at www.puco.ohio.gov."

For residential bills the text shall also include:

"Residential customers may also contact the Chio Consumers' Counsel for assistance with
complaints and utility issues at 1-877-742-5622 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or at

www, pickoce.org.”

R.C. 118.032 Review Dates:__ 11/30/2015
Promulgated Under: 111.15

Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.04

Prior Effective Dates:

4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-18 Slamming and Preferred Carrier Freezes Effective: 1/20/2011

{A) Providers of telecommunications service, in the course of submitting or executing a change on behalf
of a subscriber in the selection of a telephone company, shall obtain authorization from the
subscriber and verification of that authorization in accordance with the rules and procedures
prescribed by the federal communications commission (FCC) at 47 C.F.R. 64.1100 to 64.1170. For
purposes of this rule, the term "subscriber” has the same meaning as it does within the context of the
rules and procedures prescribed by the FCC, :

(B) The submitting provider of telecommunications service shall maintain and preserve records of
verification of a subscriber's authorized switch of provider of telecommunications service in
accordance with the rules and procedures prescribed by the FCC.

(C) Any provider of telecommunications service that is informed by a subscriber or the commission of an
unauthorized provider change shall follow the commission's informal complaint procedures and the
remedies prescribed by the FCC for the resolution of informal complaints of unauthorized changes of
providers of telecommunications service.

(D) The commission, upon complaint by any person or its own initiative, has jurisdiction under sections
4905.73 and 4905.26 of the Revised Code concerning any violation of this rule and may order
remedies as delineated under the rules and procedures prescribed by the FCC and in effect at the
time of the violation, as well as enforce the duties and remedies provided for under sections 4905.72
and 4905.73 of the Revised Code.

(E} A provider of telecommunications service shall offer a preferred carrier freeze (PCF), only in
accordance with the rules and procedures prescribed by the FCC.

{F)} All telecommunications providers that offer PCFs shall be required to refrain from attempting to retain

a customer’'s account during the process of changing a customer's preferred carrier selection, or
otherwise to provide such information to its marketing staff or any affiliate.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4801.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.03

Priar Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 12/29/05, 8/18/07
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4901:1-6-19 Lifeline Requirements Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) An incumbent local exchange carrier (ILEC) that is an eligible telecommunications carrier (ETC)

under 47 C.F.R. 54.201 shall implement lifeline service throughout the ILEC ETC's traditional service
area for its eligible residential customers.

(B) Lifeline service shall be a flat-rate, monthly, primary access line service with touch-tone service and

shall provide all of the following:

(1) A recurring discount to the monthly basic local exchange service rate that provides for the
maximum contribution of federally available assistance;

{2) Not more than once per customer at a single address in a twelve-month period, a waiver of all
nonrecurring service order charges for establishing service;

(3) Free biocking of toll service, 900 service, and 976 service;
{4y A waiver of the federal universal service fund end user charge;

(5) A walver of the telephone company's service deposit requirement.

{C) The ILEC ETC may offer to lifeline service customers any other services and bundies or packages of

service at the prevailing prices, less the lifeline discount.

(D) The ILEC ETC also shall offer special payment arrangements to lifeline service customers that have

past due bills for regulated local service charges, with the initial payment not io exceed twenty-five
dollars before service is installed, and the balance for regulated local service charges o be paid over
six, equal monthly payments. Lifeline service customers with past due bills for toll service charges
shall have toll restricted service until the past due toll service charges have been paid or until the
customer establishes service with another toll provider.

(E) Every large ILEC required to implement lifeline service shall establish an annual marketing budget for

promoting lifeline service and performing outreach regarding lifeline service. Every large ILEC shall
work with the advisory board established in paragraph (F) to reach consensus, where possible,
regarding an appropriate budget for promoting lifeline and performing outreach and regarding how
the budget will be spent. All funds allocated to this budget shall be spent for the promotion and
marketing of lifeline service and outreach regarding lifeline service and only for those purposes and
not for any administrative costs of implementing lifeline service.

(F) All activities relating to the promotion of, marketing of, and outreach regarding lifeline service provided

by the large ILECs shall be coordinated through a single adviscry board composed of staff of the
public utilities commissicn, the office of the consumers' counsel (OCC), consumer groups
representing low income constituents, two representatives from the Ohio association of community
action agencies, and every large ILEC. The commission staff shall provide active leadership in the
initial organization of the statewide board and the development of procedures and bylaws under
which the board will operate. Commission staff shall, with the assistance of the office of the
consumers' counsel, work with the advisory board to reach consensus on the organization of the
board and all activities relating to the promotion of, marketing of, and outreach regarding lifeline
service. However, where consensus is not possible, the commission's staff shall make the final
determination. Decisions on the crganization of the board and decisions of the advisory board
including decisions an how the lifeline marketing, promation, and outreach activities are implemented
are subject to commission review.

All other aspects of an ILEC ETC's state-specific lifeline service shall be consistent with federal
requirements. The rates, terms, and conditions for the ILEC's lifeline service shall be tarified in
accordance with rule 4901:1-6-11 of the Administrative Code.




4901:1-8
Page - 31 -
Published: January 11, 2011

{H) Eligibility for lifeline service under this rule shall be based on either of the following criteria:

(1) An individual's verifiable participation in any federal or state low-income assistance program that
limits assistance based on household income. These programs include:

(a) Medical assistance under Chapter 5111. of the Revised Code (medicaid) or any state
program that might supplant Medicaid,

(b} Supplemental nutritional assistance pragram (SNAP/food stamps);

(¢) Supplemental security income (SS1) under Title XVI of the Social Security Act;
(d) Social security disability insurance - blind and disabled (SSDI);

(e) Federal public housing assistance, or section 8;

() Home energy assistance programs (HEAP, LIHEAP, E-HEAPY);

(g) National school lunch program's free lunch program {NSL);

(h) Temporary assistance for needy families (TANF/Ohio works); or

(i) General assistance, including disability assistance (DA).

The commission may add or remove programs from this list as required by federal or state
law.

{2) Other verification that an individual's household income is at or below one hundred fifty per cent
of the federal poverty level. ILEC ETC's may use any reasonable method of verification,
Consistent with federal law, examples of acceptable documentation include the following:

(a) State or federal income tax return;

(b) Currentincome statement or W-2 from an employer;
(¢) Three consecutive months of current pay stubs;

(d) Social security statement of benefits;

(e) Retirement/pension statement of benefits;

(f) Unemployment/workmen's compensation statement of benefits;

(g) Any other legal document that would show current income (such as a divorce decree or child
support document).

(I All ILEC ETCs must verify customer eligibility consisteni with the federal communications
commission's (FCC} requirements in 47 C.F.R. 54, to enroll customers into lifeline assistance who
qualify through household income-based requirements.

{J) The commission shall work with the appropriate state agencies that administer federal or state low-
income assistance programs and with carriers to negotiate and acquire information necessary to
verify an individual's eligibility and the data necessary to automatically enroll eligible persons for
lifeline service.
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{K) To the extent that appropriate state agencies are able to accommodate automatic enrcliment, every
ILEC ETC shall automatically enrcll customers into lifeline assistance who participate in a qualifying
program.

{L) An ILEC ETC shall provide written notification if the carrier determines that an individual is not eligible
for lifeline service enroliment and shall provide the persen an additional thirty days to prove eligibility.

{M) An ILEC ETC shall provide written customer notification if a customer's lifeline service benefits are to
be terminated due to failure to submit acceptable documentation for continued eligibility for that
assistance and shall provide the customer an additional sixty days to submit acceptable
documentation of continued eligibiiity or dispute the carrier's findings regarding termination of the
lifeline service. ’

{N) Commission staff will maintain on the commission's website a copy of boilerplate customer notices
that are compliant with the FCC's regquirements. Any ILEC ETC choosing to create and use its own
customer notice shall submit its proposed notice to commission staff for approval.

(O} An ILEC ETC shall establish procedures to verify an individual's continuing eligibility for both program
and income-based criteria consistent with the FCC's requirements in 47 C.F.R. 54.409 to 54.410.
ILEC ETCs shall maintain records to document compliance with these requirements and shall attest,
as part of the periodic ETC certification process by the commission, that they comply with the FCC's
requirements.

(P) An ILEC ETC may recover through a customer billing surcharge on retail customers of the ILEC's
telecommunications service other than lifeline service customers, any lifeline service discounts and
any other lifeline service expenses that are not recovered through federal or state funding and that
are approved by the commission under this paragraph. The surcharge may not include recovery of
expenses related to the marketing and promoction of lifeline service. The surcharge may be
established through one of the following means:

{1 An ILEC ETC that chooses to establish a customer billing surcharge to non-lifeline customers, to
recover lifeline service discounts and expenses identified in this paragraph shall file a thirty-day
application for tariff amendment (ATA). Such application may request recovery of lifeline
service discounts that are not recovered through federal or state funding such as federal
universal service fund end user charges, service connection charges, blocking of S00/876,
recurring discount maximizing the contribution of federally available assistance, and recurring
retail price differences between the frozen lifeline service rate and residential BLES rates, as
well as lifeline service expenses that are not recovered through federal or state funding such as
administrative expenses for the sole purpose of verifying the eligibility and enrolling of lifeline
customers. An applicant must provide documentation to support its proposed surcharge and its
compliance with this rule, Absent suspension or other commission action, the application shall
be deemed approved and become effective on the thirty-first day or later date if requested by
the company.

{(2) An ILEC ETC requesting recovery of any expenses not specified in paragraph (P)(1) of this rule
shall file an application with the commission, using the most up-to-date telecommunications
filing form, under the TP-UNC case purpose code. An applicant must provide documentation to
support its proposed customer billing surcharge and its compliance with this rule and must
further suppart its request for recovery of any expenses not specified in paragraph (P)(1) of this
rule with a detailed supporting memorandum. Absent suspension or commission action, the
application shall be deemed approved and become effective on the one hundred twenty-first day
or later date if requested by the company.

(Q} If an ILEC ETC chooses to establish a customer billing surcharge to recover its lifeline expenses
"~ under paragraph (P){1) or {P}{2) of this rule, the lifeline surcharge shall not appear in the section of
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the bill reserved for taxes and government-mandated charges as set forth in 47 C.F.R. 64.2400 to
64.2401.

An ILEC ETC that is authorized to establish a customer billing surcharge under either paragraph
{P)(1} or (P){2} of this rule shall annually file with the commission a report that identifies actual
amounts recovered and the actual lifeline service discounts and any other lifeline service expenses
incurred for the prior period. The company shall provide such data as necessary to enable the
commission to validate such amounts to ensure that the company did not over recover its approved
expenses from customers. The commission shall establish for each such company the timeframe for
filing this report when the commission approves any such billing surcharge. The annual filing may be
contained in a request to adjust the billing surcharge in accordance with paragraph (P)(1) or (P}{2) of
this rule, but shall be provided via a separate filing and docketed in a generic case number to be
established by the commission, if no adjustment to the billing surcharge is sought. Any over-recovery
or under-recovery shall be offset against or added to the next year's recovery.

(S) Every ILEC ETC shall file with the commission in its annual assessment report the number of its

customers who receive, at the time of filing of the repor, lifeline service.

(T) Upon request of commission staff, additional information regarding customer subscription to and

disconnection of lifeline service shall be provided to commission staff in accordance with rule
4901:1-6-30 of the Administrative Code. )

(U) Competitive eligible telecommunication carriers (CETCs) lifeline requirements.

{1) The lifeline requirements found in paragraphs (B), (C}, {D), (G}, (H), {I), (L), (M}, (N), and (O) of
this rule apply to the lifeline service offered by any CETC, as applicable to that CETC's service
offerings.

{2y A CETC shall provide to commission staff, upon request, information regarding the number of its
lifeline customers and any additional information regarding customer subscription to and
disconnection of lifeline service in the manner and timeframe determined by commission staff.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority; 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Ampiifies: 4927.03

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-20 Discounts for Persons with Communications Disabilities Effective; 1/20/2011

(A) In accordance with section 4927.14 of the Revised Code, telephone companies that provide toll
service shall, upon written application and ceriification of their disabled status by a residential
disabled customer or a disabled member of a customer's household, offer one of the following
applicable discounts to persons with communication disabilities:

(1) Noless than a straight seventy per cent discount off the basic message toll service (MTS) current
price list day rates on a twenty-four hour a day basis.

(2) A forty per cent discount off the intrastate, interexchange, customer-dialed, station-to-station calls
occurring between eight a.m. and four fifty-nine p.m. Monday to Friday; a sixty per cent discount
off of the intrastate, interexchange, customer-dialed, station-ip-station calls occurring between
five p.m. and ten fifty-nine p.m. Sunday to Friday, and New Year's day, Independence day,
Labor day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas; and a seventy per cent discount off the intrastate,
interexchange, customer-dialed, station-to-station calls occurring between eleven p.m. and
seven fifty-nine a.m. any day; and eight a.m. and four fifty-nine p.m. Sunday, and alt day
Saturday.

(3) For MTS which is offered similar to the mileage-banded rate structure established in the
commission's April 8, 1985 opinion and order in case No. 84-944-TP-COI, with the traditional
day, evening, and night/weekend discounts: the "evening" discount off the intrastate,
interexchange, customer-dialed, station-to-station calls placed during the "day" period Monday
to Friday; and the "night/weekend" discount off the intrastate, interexchange, customer-dialed,
station-to-station calis placed during the "evening" period Sunday to Friday, New Year's day,
Independence day, Labor day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas. Furthermore, the "night/weekend"
discount plus an additional discount equivalent to no less than ten per cent of the company's
current price list day rates for basic MTS shall be made available for intrastate, interexchange,
customer-dialed, station-to-station calls placed during the "night/weekend" period any day, the
"day" period Sunday, and all day Saturday.

(B) Certification of disabled status can be evidenced by either a certificate from a physician, health care
official, state agency, or diploma from an accredited educational institution for the disabled.

(C) The aforementioned discounts are also applicable to all MTS and direciory assistance calls placed
through the telecommunications relay service. The discounts shall not apply to sponsor charges
associated with calls placed to pay-per-call services, such as 900, §76, or 900-like calls. Additionally,
certified disabled individuals who utilize telebraille devices are eligible to receive free access to local
and intrastate long distance directory assistance. Lines maintained by nonprofit organizations and
governmental agencies are also eligible to receive a discount off of their MTS rates upon written
application and verification that such lines are maintained for the benefit of the disabled.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.14

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-21 Termination of Community Voicemail Pilot Program Effective: 1/20/2011

The commission shall require the chosen vendor(s), as part of the competitive bidding process for the
community voicemail service pilot program, to address in their competitive bids the manner in which
recipients of services under the community voicemail service pilot program will be netified or educated of
the program's termination. The commission will, upon selecting a vendor, establish the manner in which
recipients of services under the community voicemail service pilot program will be notified or educated of
the program’s termination.

R.C. 115.032 Review Dates.___ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4801.13
Rule Amplifies: SB 162, Sec. 6

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-22 Inmate Operator Service Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) The maximum rate of any usage sensitive charge that may be applied by an inmate operator service
{08} provider to any intrastate tOS call shall not exceed thirty-six cents per minute of use, The
maximum amount of any operator assistance charge or call set up fee that may be applied by an 10S
provider to any intrastate 108 call shall not exceed two dollars and seventy-five cents.

{B) Notice of any change in 10S rates, whether upward or downward, must be filed by the IOS provider
with the commission in the form of a new pricing list in the 10S provider's TRF docket.

{C) All 10S providers must furnish, on all intrastate 10S calls, at the beginning of the call before the billed
party incurs any charges, immediate and full rate disclosures that quote the actual intrastate price
lists rates for all components of the call. However, 1OS providers may allow a billed party an
opportunity to affirmatively decline receiving the required rate guote. '

(D) 108 providers may not charge a billed party surcharges in addition to the 10S service charges set
forth in their commissicn-approved tariff which, in turn, must comply with the per-minute and per-call
rate caps set forth in paragraph (A) of this rule. This restriction means that no surcharges, including,
but not limited to, bill rendering charges, nonsubscriber charges, property imposed fees, and any
additional charge which the entity contracting for the 10S service may request the 10S provider to bill
a billed party, may be levied by the }OS provider on the billed party. Any surcharges imposed by an
entity contracting with the IOS provider are to be levied separately by the entity contracting with the
108 provider.

(E) HOS providers may not charge for uncompleted calls.

(F) Each 10S provider must include in its contract with each of its customers language requiring that the
customer permit the |IOS provider to take whatever steps are necessary to ensure that the 10S
provider is in compliance with all of the established requirements and restrictions pertaining to 108,

(G) Upon reguest, each |OS provider must provide, as directed by the commission or its staff, information
concerning its operations.

(H) On all intrastate 10S calls, the |OS provider must allow the billed party to terminate at no charge
before the call is connected.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under; 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.18, 5B 162 Sec. 3

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/05, 12/29/05, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-23 Pay Telephone Access Lines Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Upon request, an incumbent local exchange carrier (ILEC) must provide a pay telephone access line
and local usage on the pay telephone access line to payphone service providers, within the ILEC's
normal instaltation intervals.

(1) The rates, terms, and conditions for pay telephone access lines shall be tariffed and shall be
filed through a thirty-day application for tariff amendment (ATA) filing in accordance with rule
4901:1-6-05 of the Administrative Code.

(2) All ILECs' currently tariffed pay telephone access line rates are deemed reasonable, unless the
commission determines otherwise through ancther commission proceeding.

(3) Subseguent increases in rates and changes to the terms and conditions, for tariffed pay
telephone access lines, shall be filed through a thirty-day ATA filing in accordance with rule
4801:1-6-05 of the Administrative Code. Such applications require supporting documentation
including, but not limited to, documentation showing that the rate is in compliance with the
federal communications commission's (FCC) new services test for pay telephone access lines, if
applicable.

{B) Provisioning of pay telephone access lines including the rates, terms, and conditions of such lines is

subject to the applicable laws, including rules or regulations adopted and orders issued by the
commission or the FCC.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4527.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.15

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-24 Wireless Service Provisions Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) The commission has authority over wireless service and wireless service providers to the extent set
forth in this rule and section 4927.03 of the Revised Code.

{B} Registration

No wireless service provider shall operate in the state of Ohio without first registering with the
commission. Every wireless service provider desiring to offer wireless service in Ohio shall file a
zero-day registration notice in a radio commeon carrier (RCC) filing with the commission utilizing the
telecommunications filing form discussed in ruje 4901:1-68-04 of the Administrative Code and
providing all of the following:

(1} The company's name,

(2) The company's address.

(3} The name of a contact person and that person's contact information.

(4) A service description, including the general geographic areas served (no maps are required).
(5) Evidence of registration with the Ohio secretary of state,

(6) Evidence of notice to the Ohio department of taxation, public utilities tax division, of its intent to
provide service. :

(C) Change in operations

Every wireless service provider shall keep its registration information up-to-date by notifying the
commission of any changes in its operations (i.e., mergers, abandonment, transfers, name changes,
and changes in ownership) by submitting a zero-day notice to the commission for identification
purposes utilizing an up-to-date version of the commission's telecommunications filing form under its
original RCC case designation code established during the wireless service provider's registration
process.

(D) Assessment report

The requirements of sections 4905.10, 4905.14, and 4911.18 of the Revised Code apply to wireless
service providers. Wireless service providers are required to submit, at the time and in the manner
prescribed by the commission, an annual assessment report and to pay the prescribed annual
assessment for the maintenance of the commission. A copy of the form is available on the
commission's web site or from the commission's fiscal division.

(E) Jurisdiction authorized by federal law and regulations.

The commission has such power and jurisdiction with respect to wireless service providers,
consistent with division (B) of section 4927.03 and divisions {A) to (D) and (F) of section 4527.04 of
the Revised Code, to perform the cbligations authorized by or delegated to it under federal law,
including federal regulations, which obligations include performing the acts of a state commission as
defined in the Communications Act of 1934, 48 Stat. 1064, 47 U.S.C. 153, as amended, with respect
to all of the following:

(1} The rights and obligations under section 251 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

(2) Mediation and arbitration of disputes and approval of agreements under section 252 of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996,
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(3) Administration of telephone numbers and number portability.
{4) Certification of telecommunications carriers eligible for universal service funding.
{5} Administration of federal regulations on customer proprietary network information.

(F) Telecommunications relay service, eligible telecommunications carrier and lifeline requirements, 8-1-
1, and universal service:

The commission has authority over wireless service, resellers of wireless service, or wireless service
providers as set forth in section 4905.84 of the Revised Code and rule 4901:1-6-36 of the
Administrative Code, as well as, sections 4931.40 to 4931.70 and 4931.99 of the Revised Code. The
commission has authority over wireless service providers with respect to addressing carrier access
policy and creating and administering mechanisms for carrier access reform as set forth in section
division (C) of 4927.15 of the Revised Code. To the extent that a wireless service provider or reseller
of wireless service seeks certification in Ohio as a telecommunications carrier eligible for universal
service funding under 47 U.S.C. 214{e), the commission has authority to consider such application
under rule 4501:1-6-09 of the Administrative Code and to impose requirements with respect to lifeline
service under rule 4901:1-6-19 of the Administrative Code if the carrier seeks to withdraw funds from
the universal service fund for the provision of lifeline service.

(G) Compliance and enforcement

The commission has such authority over wireless service providers under section 4927.20 of the
Revised Code as is necessary to enforce compliance with every order, direction, and requirement of
the commission made under authority of this rule, consistent with division (B) of section 4827.03 of
the Revised Code. The commission has authority to adjudicate any dispute between telephone
companies and wireless service providers or between wireless service providers that is within the
commission's jurisdiction under section 4927.21 of the Revised Code.

(H) Wireless resellers

The commission has such authority over resellers of wireless service as set forth in section division
{B) of 4927.03 of the Revised Code.

R.C. 110.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4905.84, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.03, 4905.84

Prior Effective Dates: 4/8/03, 9/18/07
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4901:1-6-25 Withdrawal of Telecommunications Services Effective: 1/20/2011

{A) Except as provided in paragraphs (B}, (D), and (E} of this rule, a telephone company may cease
offering any telecommunications service, by providing a notice of withdrawal of such service or
services.

{1} Notice, consistent with rule 4901:1-6-07 of the Administrative Code, shall be provided to all
affected customers, and the chief of the telecommunications division of the utilities department
and the chief of the reliability and service analysis division of the service monitoring and
enforcement department at least thirty days prior to the effective date that the telephone
company will cease providing a specific telecommunications service.

{2) At least thirty days prior to withdrawal of a specific telecommunications service, a telephone
company shall provide written notice of its intent to cease providing service to its wholesale
customers and to any telephone company wholesale provider of its services, if applicable.

(B) Withdrawal of basic local exchange service (BLES)

{1) A compstitive local exchange carrier (CLEC) shall not discontinue offering BLES within an
exchange(s) without filing a zero-day notice filing (ZTA) to withdraw such service or services
from its tariff. CLECs must include with the notice filing the actual customer notice and an
affidavit verifying that this customer notice has been provided to affected customers at least
thirty days prior to the effective date that the CLEC will cease providing BLES.

(2) A CLEC ceasing to offer BLES shall return all deposits, including applicable interest, to its

customers who do not convert to another service with the CLEC, no later than ninety days after
filing its withdrawal notice filing unless a court of competent jurisdiction orders otherwise.

(3} At least thirty days prior to withdrawal of BLES, a CLEC shall provide written notice of its intent ta
cease providing service, fo any telephone company from which the applicant obtains wholesale
services, if applicable.

(4} An incumbent local exchange carrier shall not discontinue providing BLES without complying with
the provisions of rule 4901:1-6-27 of the Administrative Code.

(C) A local exchange carrier proposing to withdraw telecommunications service(s) within an exchange or
other geographical area shall provide a list of its assigned area code prefix(es) or thousand block(s).
Such information shall also include any proposed dates or timelines, due to its withdrawal of such
telecommunications service(s), wherein the telephone company's area code prefix(es} or thousand
block(s) would be reassigned to another carrier and/or returned to the North American numbering
plan administrator or pooling administrator.  This requirement does not apply where the
telecommunications service(s} to he withdrawn does not require the assignment of telephone
numbers, or the use of such telephone numbers will continue to be required for other services
provided by the local exchange carrier.

{D) Withdrawal of tariffed services other than BLES

A telephone company may not cease offering any services required to be tariffed pursuant to
paragraphs (A)(1)(b) to (A)(1){i} of rule 4901:1-6-11 of the Administrative Code, without first filing an
applicaticn to withdraw such service(s) from its tariff, using the most up-to-date telecommunications
filing form, and without obtaining prior commission approval. Such an application shall be
designated under a TP-UNC case purpose code and shall not be subject to an automatic approval
process.
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(E) Interconnection and resale agreements approved under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 are
subject to the terms of the agreements, federal law, and Chapter 4801:1-7 of the Administrative

Code.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___ 11/30/2015
Promulgated Under: 111.15

Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.07

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-26 Abandonmeant Effective: 1/20/2011

{(A) A telephone company seeking to abandon entirely telecommunications service in this state, including
its tariff and certificate of public convenience and necessity, shall not abandon the service(s) it
provides under a certificate without filing an abandonment application {ABN) to abandon service and
to cancel its certificate of operation.

{B) Abandonment applications shall be filed at least thirty days prior to the effective date that the
telephone company will cease providing service. The application shall include copies of any notices
provided pursuant to paragraphs (C) to (D} of this rule, as well as an affidavit verifying that the
customer notice was provided to affected customers, and shall include the list pursuant to paragraph
(J} of this rule, :

{C) At least thirty days prior to abandoning operations, a telephone company shall provide written notice
of its intent io cease providing service to any telephone company from which the applicant obtains
wholesale services.

{D) At least thirty days prior to abandoning operations, a telephone company shall provide written notice
of its intent to abandon service to its retail customers and wholesale customers, and to any telephone
company wholesale provider of its services, if applicable, consistent with rule 4901:1-6-07 of the
Administrative Code. If the telephone company does not have any retail customers at the time it
seeks to abandon service and cancel its certificate, customer notice to retail customers is not
required with its application.

{E) A telephone company abandoning operations shall return all deposits, including applicable interest, to
its customers no later than ninety days after filing its abandonment application unless a court of
competent jurisdiction orders otherwise.

(F) If the commission does not act upon the application within thirty days of the filing date, a telephone
company's application will be approved in accordance with the thirty-day automatic approval process
described in rule 4901:1-6-05 of the Administrative Code and its certificate of public convenience and
necessity will be canceled.

(G} This rule does not apply to basic local exchange service provided by an incumbent local exchange
carrier.

{H) An abandoning telephone company may not discontinue services provided to any customer or
telephone company until the abandonment application has been approved by the commission.

(1) No telephone company may discontinue services provided to a Jocal exchange carrier (LEC) that has
filed an application to abandon service prior to the commission ruling on such application to abanden
service,

{J) Where applicable, the LEC abandoning operations shall provide a list of its assigned area code
prefix(es) or thousands block(s) including any proposed dates or timelines, due to its abandonment
-proceedings, wherein the LEC's area code prefix{es) or thousands block(s} would be reassigned to
ancther carrier and/or returned to the North American numbering plan administrator or pooling
administrator.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:__ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111,15
Statutory Authority: _ 4927.03
Rule Amplifies; 4927.07

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-27 Provider of last Resort (POLR) Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Except as otherwise provided in this rule, an incumbent local exchange carrier {ILEC) shall provide
basic local exchange service (BLES) to all persons or entifies in its service area requesting that
service, and that service shall be provided on a reasonable and nondiscriminatory basis.

(B} An ILEC is not obligated to consiruct facilities and provide BLES, or any other telecommunications
service, to the occupants of multitenant real estate, including, but not limited to, apartments,
condominiums, subdivisions, office buildings, or office parks, if the owner, operator, or developer of
the multitenant real estate does any of the following to the benefit of any other provider of
telecommunications service:

{1) Permits only one provider of telecommunications service to install its facilities or equipment
during the construction or development phase of the multitenant reat estate;

{2) Accepts or agrees to accept incentives or rewards that are offered by a provider of
telecommunications service to the owner, operator, developer, or occupants of the multitenant
real estate and are contingent on the provision of telecommunications service by that provider to
the occupants, to the exclusion of services provided by other providers of telecommunications
service; or

(3) Coliects from the occupants of the multitenant real estate any charges for the provision of
telecommunications service to the occupants, including charges collected through rents, fees, or
dues.

(C) An [LEC not obligated to construct facilities and provide BLES pursuant to paragraph (B) of this rule
shall notify the commission of that fact within one hundred twenty days of receiving knowledge
thereof. Such notification shall be filed in a zero-day notice under a ZTA case caption including,
where applicable, any necessary tariff revisions outlining the geographic boundaries of the ILEC's
service area to which the notification would apply. In addition, the notice shall specify the
circumstances under which the company qualifies to invoke paragraph (B) of this rule.

(D} An ILEC that receives a reguest from any person or entity to provide BLES under the circumstances
described in paragraph (B} of this rule shall, within fifteen days of receipt of such request, provide
notice to the requesting person or entity specifying whether the ILEC will provide the requested
service. If the ILEC provides notice that it will not serve the person or entity, the notice shall:

{1) Explain the reason for not offering the requested BLES; and

(2) Describe the person's or entity's right to file a complaint with the commisston under section
4927.21 of the Revised Code within thirty days after receipt of the notice.

(E) In resolving any complaint under paragraph (D} of this rule, the commission's determination shall be
limited to whether any circumstance described in paragraphs (B)(1) to ((B)(3) of this rule exists. Upon
a finding by the commission that such a circumstance exists, the complaint shall be dismissed. Upon
a finding that such circumstances do not exist, the person's or entity's sole remedy shall be provision
by the ILEC of the requested service within a reascnable time, as determined by the commission.

{F) When the circumstances described in paragraph (B) of this rule cease to exist, and a person or entity
subsequently requests that the ILEC provide BLES, the ILEC shall be required to provide BLES to
such real estate, unless the ILEC files with the commission a request for waiver pursuant to
paragraph (G} of this rule and such request is granted. In the event that the commission determines
that the ILEC shouid not be required to provide BLES, the commission will initiate a commission
proceeding for determining a successor telephone company.
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(G) An ILEC may apply to the commission for a waiver from compliance with paragraph (A) of this rule in
circumstances other than those listed in paragraph (B) of this rule, through an application for waiver
(WVR) filing.

{1) The application for waiver of the ILEC's obligation under paragraph {A) of this rule shall include, at
the minimum, all of the following:

(@)} A clear and detailed description of the geographic boundary of the ILEC's service area to
which the requested waiver would apply;

(b} The requested effective date of the waiver;

{c} A clear identification of class of customer impacted by the waiver, if any customer-class
limitation of waiver is requested, and the number of persons or entities who would be
impacted by the requested waiver;

(d) A clear explanation of the rationale behind the requested waiver, including an unusual
technical limitation or an economic analysis demonstrating a financial hardship to provide
BLES in the requested geegraphic area and an idenitification of any available alternative
providers of telecommunications service;

{e) A proposed newspaper customer notice, consistent with paragraph (G)(2) of this rule;

{f) A clear explanation as to whether the requested waiver would apply only to prospective
customers or to the entire customer-base in the requested geographic ares;

{g) A clear explanation of how customers would otherwise have access io BLES or alternative
service offerings that are just and reasonable; and

{h} A clear explanation of how the requested waiver would be just, reasonable, and not contrary
to the public interest.

(2) The ILEC applying for the waiver shall provide, with its application, a draft copy of its proposed
customer notice to be published one time in a newspaper of general circulation throughout the
service area identified in the application. In addition, the ILEC shall also provide any other
notice required by the commission in the waiver proceeding to any affected persons who are or
would be potentially impacted by the requested waiver. For purposes of this rule, affected
persons shall include, at a minimum, any existing customers of the requesting ILEC within the

. geographic boundary of the ILEC's service area io which the requested waiver would apply.
Upon the filing of a waiver application filed under this paragraph, the commission, attorney
examiner, or legal director shall issue an entry which addresses customer netice content and
service, establishes a reasonable opportunity for comment, schedules a hearing as set forth in
paragraph (G)(3) of this rule, and addresses any other procedural matters.

{3) The commission shall order a public hearing in the service area(s) identified in the application
pursuant to paragraph (G)(1)(a) of this rule.

{4} No later than one hundred twenty days after the filing of a complete application pursuant to
paragraph (G) of this rule, the commission either shall issue an order granting the waiver if,
upon investigation, it finds the waiver to be just, reasonable, and not contrary to the public
interest, and that the applicant demonstrates a financial hardship or an unusual technical
limitation, or shall issue an order denying the waiver based on a failure to meet those standards
and specifying the reasons for the denial.

{H) A waiver application filed under paragraph (G) of this rule that does not contain all of the information
required by paragraph (G}1) of this rule will be considered deficient and will not trigger the one
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hundred twenty-day review period in paragraph (G}{4} of this rule until the date that a complete
application has been filed by the applicant. The commission, the legal director, or an attorney
examiner has the authority to issue an entry either dismissing the application or establishing the date
that the application is complete and begin the one hundred twenty-day review period.

R.C. 115.032 Review Dates: _ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4892711

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-28 Bankruptcy Effective: 1/20/2011

A telephone company seeking bankruptcy protection from any jurisdiction under Chapter 7 or 11 of the
United States bankruptcy code shall notify the commission by serving notice of the bankruptcy filing on
the chief of the telecommunications section of the utilities department. The notification shall include a
copy of any and all notices or pieadings filed in the bankruptcy court, specifically setting forth the date and
type of bankruptcy, the name and address of the bankruptey court, the name and address of the
bankruptcy attorney, and the name and address of a person at the company who can provide additional
information regarding Ohio customers.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.05

Prior Effective Dates: None
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49071:1-6-29 Telephone Company Procedures for Notifying the Commission

of Changes in Operations Effective: 1/20/2011

(A) Every telephone company shall update its ceriification authority if there is any change in its operations
as identified in this rule.

(B) Procedures for notifying the commission of updates to certification authority and certain changes in
operations by a local exchange carrier (LEC) providing basic local exchange servics (BLES).

(1) A LEC providing BLES shall file a telecommunications filing form pursuant to paragraph {(A) of
rule 48071:1-6-04 of the Administrative Code and the required attachments as set forth on that
form for an application notifying the commission of the following changes in its operations in the
appropriate application listed:

(a} ATC - An application to transfer a certificate 1o a preselected transferee.

(b} ATR - An appiication to conduct a transaction involving one or more LECs providing BLES
for the purchase, sale, or lease of property, plant, or business which may affect the
operating authority of a party to the transaction.

(c} ACN - An application to change the name of a LEC providing BLES.

(2) All applications filed pursuant to paragraph (B)(1) of this rule are subject to a thirty-day automatic
approval process as described in rule 4901:1-6-05 of the Administrative Code.

{C) Procedures for notifying the commission of updates to certification authority and certain changes in
operations by telephone companies.

(1) All telephone companies, except LECs providing BLES, shall file a telecommunications filing
form pursuant to paragraph (A) of rule 4901:1-6-04 of the Administrative Code and the required
attachments as set forth on that form when notifying the commission of the following changes in
operations {CIO): '

(a) For any change in ownership which is transparent to customers.

(b} For an application to transfer a certificate and/or conduct a sale or lease of property, plant,
customer base, or business which may affect the operating authority of a party(ies) to the
transaction.

(c) For an application by two or more telephone companies fo merge.
{d) For an application to change the name of a telephonsa company.

(2) A CIO application is subject to a zero-day notice filing process as described in rule 4901:1-6-05 of
the Administrative Code.

(D) Customer notification

A telephone company shall provide to its affected customers, in accordance with rule 4801:1-6-07 of
the Administrative Code, at lsast fifteen days' advance notice (e.g., direct mail, bill insert, or bill
notation) of any change in the company's operations identified by this rule that is not transparent to
its customers and may impact service, and file a copy of such notice with the commission concurrent
with the filing of an application under this rule. In the alternative, a telsphone company subject to the
notification procedures set forth in 47 C.F.R. 63.71, may submit evidence of a customer notice
already provided for the purpose of informing subscribers of a change in operations consistent with
the requirements of the federal communications commission.
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(E) Procedures for merger and change in controt applications of a LEC providing BLES

A LEC providing BLES shall obtain the prior approval of the commission for a change in conirgl
(ACOQ) or approval of a merger with another telephone company (AMT) under section 4905.402 of
the Revised Code, An applicant shall file with the commission a telecommunications filing form
pursuant to rule 4801:1-6-04 of the Administrative Code and the required attachments as set forth on
that form. An AMT and/or ACO application must demonstrate that the change in control or merger
will promote public convenience and result in the provision of adequate service for a reasonable rate,
rental, toll, or charge. If the commission considers a hearing necessary, it may fix a time and place
for hearing. If, after review of the application, and after any necessary hearing, the commission is
satisfied that approval of the application will promote public convenience and result in the provision
of adequate service for a reasonable rate, rental, toll, or charge, the commission shall approve the
application and make such order as it considers proper. If the commission fails to issue an order
within thirty days of the filing of the application, or within twenty days of the conclusion of a hearing, if
one is held, the application shall be deemed approved.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4927.05
Rule Amplifies: 4927.05

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-30 Company Records and Complaint Procedures Effective: 1/20/2011

(A} The commigsion may investigate or examine the books, records, or practices of any telephone
company to the extent of the commission's jurisdiction over the company under sections 4927.01 to
4827.271 of the Revised Code. Telephone companies shall have available for auditing or inspection
by commission staff sufficient books, records, contracts, documents, and papers for any purpose
incidental to the commission's authority under sections 4927.01 to 4927.21 of the Revised Code, in
accordance with this chapter and the rules and procedures prescribed by the federal communications
commission.

(1} Such records should be retained by telephone companies for at least eighteen months, unless
otherwise specified by the commission.

(2) Upon commission staff request, the telephone company shall provide such records of sufficient
detail, to permit review of the telephone company's compliance with the rules of this chapter.
Upon request, the telephone company shall provide data or information in a format agreed upon
by the commission staff.

{B} A telephone company shall provide commission staff with a company contact, including a toll free
number and an e-mail address, for complaint resolution and shall respond to commission and
consumer inquiries and complaints in a reasonable and timely manner.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111,15
Statutory Authority: 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.19

Prior Effective Dates: None
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4901:1-6-31 Emergency and QOutage Operations Effective: 1/20/2011

{A) Each facilities-based local exchange carrier (LEC) shall design, operate, and maintain its facilities to
continue to provide customers with the ability to originate and receive calls at all times. The
commission will utilize existing FCC rules applicable to emergency and outage operations.
Companies shall submit outage reports utilizing, at the company's discretion, either existing FCC
reports or a format determined by the commission. '

(B) Each facilities-based LEC shall submit, within two hours of discovery, to the commission's outage
coordinator and when appropriate, the news media in the affected area, a notification that it has
experienced an outage, whenever that outage occurs on any facility that it owns, operates, leases or
otherwise utilizes and is both;

(1) Expected to last for a period in excess of thirty minutes.

(2) Potentially affects at least nine hundred thousand user minutes in the incumbent local calling
area.

(C} Each facilities-based LEC shall report, by telephone or electronic means, a disruption of 9-1-1
services, which impairs 9-1-1 service within a given county 9-1-1 system, immediately to each county
9-1-1 public safety answering point, to the Chio 9-1-1 coordinator, and to the news media in the
affected area, when appropriate.

(D) Each facilities-based LEC experiencing a loss of communications or selective routing to a public
safety answering point, as a result of an outage described under paragraphs (B} and (C) of this rule,
shall also notify, as soon as possible, by telephone or electronic means, any official who has been
designated by the management of the affecied 9-1-1 facility as the LEC's contact person for
communication outages at that facility; and the LEC shall convey to that person all available
information that may be useful to the management of the affected facility in mitigating the effects of
the outage on efforts to communicate with that facility,

(E) Each facilities-based LEC experiencing an outage described under paragraphs (B) and (C) of this rule,
shall electronically submit to the commission's outage coordinator the same information as that
provided to the FCC or the following information:

{1) A notification that it has experienced a outage, which shall include the name of the reporting
entity, the date and time of the onset of the outage, a brief description of the problem, the
particular service affected, the geographic area affected by the outage, the number of
customers affected, an estimate of when the service, including 9-1-1, will be restored, and a
contact name and telephone number by which the commission's outage coordinator may
contact the reporting entity.

{2) Not later than seventy-two hours after discovering the outage, an initial communications outage
report, which shall include all pertinent information then available on the outage and shall be
submitted in good faith.

{3) Not later than thirty days after discovering the outage, the provider shall submit electronically a
final communications outage report, which shall include ali pertinent information on the cutage,
inciuding any information that was not contained in, or that has changed from that provided in,
the initial report.

{F) Each facilities-based LEC shall develop, implement, and maintain an emergency plan and make it
available for review by commission staff. The plan shall inciude, but not be limited to, alt of the
following:;
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(1) Procedures for maintaining and annually updating a list of those customers who have subscribed
to the federal telecommunications service priority program, as identified in 47 C.F.R. 64,
appendix A. ‘

(2) Procedures for priority treatment in restoring out-of-service trouble of an emergency nature for
customers with a documented medical or life-threatening condition.

(3) In addition to the telecommunications service priority program, each LEC shall develop policies
and procedures regarding those customers who require priority treatment for out-of-service
clearance. Such procedures shall include a table of restoration priority, including, but not limited
to, subscribers such as police and fire stations, hospitals, key medical personnel, and other
utilities.

(4) Procedures for restoring service to priority critical facilities customers.

(5) Identification and annual updates of all of the faciliies-based LEC's critical facilities and
reasonable measures to protect its personnel and facilities.

(6) Assessments and evaluations of telecommunications facilities avasilable to provide back-up
service capabilities.

(7) Procedures for after-action assessments and reporting following activation of any part of the
emergency plan. An after-action report will be written and will include lessons learned,
deficiencies in the response to the emergency, and deficiencies in the emergency plan.

(8) A current list of the names and telephone numbers of the facilities-based LECs' emergency
service personnel to contact and coordinate with in the event of any real or anticipated iocal or
national threats to its ability to provide telecommunications service.

(9) A current list of the names and telephone numbers of the facilities-based LEC's emergency
service personnel that is made available to the commission's emergency coordinator, upon
reguest.

(10} A continuity of operations plan to assure continuance of minimum essential functions during a
large scale event in which staffing is reduced. Such plans shall provide for:

{a) Plan activation triggers such as the world health organization's pandemic phase alert levels,
widespread transmission within the United States, or a case at one or more locations within
Ohio.

{b) Identification of a pandemic coordinator and team with defined roles and responsibilities for
preparedness and response planning.

{c) ldentification of minimal essential functions, minimal staffing required to maintain such
essential functions, and personnel resource pools required to ensure continuance of those
functions in progressive stages associated with a declining workforce.

(d) Idertification of essential employees and critical inputs (e.g., raw materials, equipment,
suppliers, subcontractor services/products, and logistics) required to maintain business
operations by location and function.

(&) Policies and procedures to address personal protection initiatives.

(i Policies and procedures to maintain lines of communication with the public utilites
commission of Ghio during a declared emergency.
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(G) Each facilities-based LEC shall amend its emergency plan in accordance with the findings identified in
the after-action assessment report required under paragraph (F)(7} of this rule.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:__ 11/30/2015
Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.04
Prior Effective Dates: None




4901:1-8
Page - 53 -
Published: January 11, 2011

4901:1-6-32  Boundary Changes, and Administration of Borderline Boundaries Eftective: 1/20/2011

This rule applies to all incumbent local exchange carriers (ILECs).

{A) Except as otherwise provided in these rules, an ILEC shall continue to make available basic local
exchange service (BLES) to all persons and entities in its traditional service area. Commission-
maintained telephone exchange boundary maps shall be the official source/documentation of ILEC
service areas and boundaries.

(B) Whenever an ILEC proposes to change the boundary of an exchange area, the ILEC shali file an
application seeking to change the boundary. Whenever the exchange area involves the exchange
area of two or more ILECs, the application shall be filed joinfly by the companies involved.

(Cy Such application to change boundaries (ACB) is subject to a fourteen-day automatic approval
procedure. An ILEC application submitted for approval shall include:

{1) A description of the change being made to the boundary. The company shall work with staff to
ensure that the commission's maps reflect accurately the boundary changes, using the
company's latest technology and the telephone boundary quadrangle maps as found on the
commission's website as a basis for the boundary change.

{2) The reasons for making the change, and one of the following:.

{a) A statement explaining the effect of the change, if any, on existing BLES subscribers.

{b) A statement attesting that the change does not adversely affect the service being furnished
to any existing BLES subscriber,

{c) A statement attesting that each existing BLES subscriber whose service is adversely
affected has consented to the change

{D) Any borderline boundary dispute between ILECs or between an ILEC and a customer shall be subject
to the complaint procedures under section 4927.21 of the Revised Code.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:__ 11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4901.13,4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.01

Prior Effective Dates: None
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Excess Construction Charges Applicable to

4901:1-6-33 Certain Line Extensions for the Furnishing of Effective: 1/20/2011
Local Exchange Telephone Service

(A) An incumbent local exchange carrier (ILEC) shall provide basic local exchange service {(BLES) in its
traditional service area to all persons or entities in its service area requesting that service except as
otherwise provided in section 4927.11 of the Revised Code.

(B) Where no facilities are available and where an ILEC must construct permanent facilities on public
rights-of-way in order to furnish service to an applicant or applicants for service in its traditional
service area, the ILEC may require the applicant to pay excess construction charges in accordance
with commission-approved tariffs. A credit against the cost of excess construction charges may be
given where an apphcant performs the labor of digging holes, or trimming or removing trees in the
right-of-way in accordance with the ILEC's specifications. Where mare than one applicant is to be
furnished service along the same route, the applicants as a group may be required to share
proportionately the excess construction charges.

{C} An ILEC may not charge an applicant for any excess construction charges for BLES unless provisions
for such charges are set forth in the company's tariff and approved by the commission.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:  11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4801.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4927.03

Prior Effective Dates: None
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Filing of Contracts, Agreements, or

4901:1-6-34 Arrangements Entered into Between Effective: 1/20/2011
Telephone Companies

When necessary for the commission to carry out sections 4527.01 to 4927.21 of the Revised Code, and
only as required by the commission, a telephone company shall file with the commission a copy of any
contract, agreement, or arrangement, in writing, with any other public utility relating in any way to the
construction, maintenance, or use of its plant or property, or to any service, rate, or charge.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15 ,
Statutory Authority: 4901.13, 45827.03
Rule Amplifies: 4905.16, 4927.03

Prior Effective Dates: None
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Filing of Reports by Telephone Companies Subject e
to the Federal Communications Commission Effective: 1/20/2011

4901:1-6-35

Upon request, each telephone company operating within the state of Ohio shall submit to the director of
the utilities department of the commission or the director's designee a copy of any reporis filed with the
federal communications commission pursuani fo 47 C.F.R. 43.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:____11/30/2015

Promulgated Under; 111.15
Statutory Authority: : 4901.13, 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4905.06, 4927.04

Prior Effective Dates: None
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Effective: 1/20/2011

Telecommunication Relay Services Assessment Procedures

4901:1-6-36

{A) This rule is limited to the commission's administration and enforcement of the assessment for the
intrastate telecommunications relay service (TRS) in accordance with section 4905.84 of the Revised
Code.

(B) For the purpose of funding the TRS, the commission shall collect an assessment to pay for the costs
incurred by the TRS provider for providing the service in Ohio, from each service provider that is
required under federal law to provide its customers access to TRS, including telephone companies,
wireless service providers, resellers of wireless service, and providers of advanced services or
internet protocol-enabled services that are competitive with or functionally equivalent to voice-grade,
end user access lines, and other telecommunications services that are competitive with or
functionally equivalent to voice-grade, end user access lines in the event such provider is
subsequently required under federal taw to provide its customers access to telecommunications relay
service. For purposes of this rule, advanced services and internet protocol-enabled services have the
meanings ascribed o them by federal law, including federal regulations.

{C) Each service provider indentified in paragraph (B) of this rule shall be assessed according to a
schedule established by the commission.

{D) The commission staff shall allocate the assessment proportionately among the appropriate service
providers using a competitively neutral formula. To determine the assessment amount owed by each
provider the commission staff shall use the number of voice-grade, end user access lines, or their
equivalent, as reflected in each provider's most recent federal communications commission form
477, where applicabie. All providers shall submit to the commission staff, on a semi-annual basis, a
completed form, as prescribed by the commission staff, which contains the -number of the provider's
retail customer access lines or their equivalent.

{E) Sixty days prior to the date each service provider is required to make its assessment payment in
accordance with paragraph (C) of this ruie, the commission staff shall notify each service provider of
its proportionate share of the costs to compensate the TRS provider.

{F) The commission staff shall annually reconcile the funds coliected with the actual costs of providing
TRS when it issues the assessment in accordance with paragraph (E) of this rule and shall either
proportionately charge the service providers for any amounts not sufficient to cover the actual costs
or proportionately credit amounts collected in excess of the actual costs.

{G) In accordance with division {C) of section 4905.84 of the Revised Code, each service provider that
pays the assessment shail be permitted to recover the cost of the assessment. The method of the
recovery may include, but is not limited to, a customer billing surcharge. Any telephone company,
other than a wireless service provider, that proposes a cusiomer billing surcharge or a change in the
surcharge shall file a zero-day notice filing (ZTA) with the commission, in accordance with rule
4901:1-6-04 of the Administrative Code. The ZTA will take effect on the same day the filing is made
in accordance with paragraph (B) of rule 4901:1-6-05 of the Administrative Code. Each regulated
provider imposing a surcharge on its customers must provide notice to its customers a minimum of
fifteen days prior to the effective date of the surcharge in accordance with rule 4901:1-8-07 of the
Administrative Code.

(H) In accordance with division (D) of section 4905.84 of the Revised Code, the commission shall take
such measures as it considers necessary to protect the confidentiality of information provided
pursuant to paragraph (D) of this rule.

(1) The commission may direct the attorney general to bring an action for immediate injunction or other
appropriate relief io enforce commission orders and to secure immediate compliance with this rule,

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates: __11/30/2015
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4901:1-6-37 Assessments and Annual Reports Effective: 1/20/2011

{A) Every telephone company shall file an annual report and every wireless service provider shall submit
an annual assessment report, as required by the commission and in the format prescribed by
commission entry. The annual report shall be limited to information necessary for the commission to
caiculate the assessment provided for in section 4905.10 of the Revised Code. The commission shall
pretect any confidential information in every company and provider report.

(B) In addition to the information necessary for the commission to calculate the assessment provided for
in section 4905.10 of the Revised Code, telephone companies subject to section 4905.71 of the
Revised Code shall provide in their annual report information required by the commission to calculate
pole attachment and conduit occupancy rates and any other information the commission determines
necessary to fulfill its responsibility under section 4905.71 of the Revised Code. This information
shall be provided in the format prescribed in the commission's annual reporting form for telephone
companies.
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(C) The commission shall, by commission entry, impose on and collect from each telephone company that
i5 & local exchange carrier an assessment to pay for costs incurred by vendors under any contract for
the provision of the community voicemall pilot program in this state.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15

Statutory Authority: 4905.14

Rule Amplifies: 4905.14

Prior Effective Dates: 9/18/07, 4/8/03, 12/29/05, 12/4/08
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Ayersville Telephone Company

Emergency Action Plan

Purpese

OSHA'’s Emergency Action Plan standard, found at 29 CFR 1910.38 for plant safety and 29 CFR
1926.35 for construction, requires a written emergency action plan (EAP) if Ayersville
Telephone Company falls under a particular OSHA standard that requires an emergency action
plan.

OSHA 1910.120 Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response (HAZWOPER)
requires Ayersville Telephone Co, to have a written emergency action plan. This EAP addresses
emergencies that our company expects may reasonably occur on our systetn.

The EAP communicates to employee’s policies and procedures to follow in emergencies. This
written plan is available, upon request, to employees, their designated representatives, and any
OSHA officials who ask to see it.

Under this plan, our employees will be informed of the plan’s purpose, emergency escape
procedures and route assignments, procedures to be followed by employees who remain to
control critical office operations before they evacuate, procedures to account for all employees
after emergency evacuation has been completed, rescue and medical duties for those employees
who perform them, preferred means of reporting fires and other emergencies, types of
evacuations to be used in various emergency situations, and the alarm system.

Dave Grossheim is the program coordinator, Phil Maag General Manager has overall
responsibility for the plan. Dave Grossheim will review and update the plan as necessary.
Copies of this plan may be obtained from cither Dave Grossheim or Phil Maag.

I after reading this program, you find that improvements can be made, please contact the
program coordinator, Dave Grossheim. We encourage all suggestions because we are committed
to the success of our emergency action plan. We strive for clear understanding, safe behavior,
and involvement in the program from every level of the company.

Emergency Escape Procedures and Assignments

Our emergency escape procedures and assignments are designed to respond to many potential
emergencies including:

» Fire emergencies (process area fires, non-pressurized tank fires, pressurized tank fives, fires at
loading facilities, warehouse fires, office building fires, electrical fires)

« Toxic gas releases

+ Flammable gas releases




+ Hazardous liquid spills

« Oil spills

+ Release of radiation

+ Tornadoes

«  Winter Storms

« Flooding

» Lightning

¢ Bomb threat/Civil disturbance
s+ First-aid emergencies

Employees need to know what to do when they are the first persons to discover an emergency
and when they are alerted to a specific emergency. Our program coordinator, Dave Grossheim,
has developed alternate procedures for responding to an emergency, depending on what the
emergency is. The following guidelines apply to all EAPs:

« All employees ate trained in safe evacuation procedures, and refresher training is conducted
whenever the employee’s responsibilities or designated actions under the plan change, and
whenever the plan itself changed. In addition, the employer must review with each
employee, upon initial assignment, the parts of the plan, which the employee must know to
protect the himself/herself in the event of an emergency.

« No employee is permitted to re-enter the building until advised by management (after
determination has been made that such re-entry is safe).

» The refuge/safe zone is a meeting area designated in a location deemed safe for each group of
employees within Ayersville Telephone Co.

Fire— Back Parking Lot
Tornadoes— General Manager’s Office

Each department reports to their respective representative as follows:
+ Each employee shall report to the General Manager for the office.

The Coordinator/Manager is trained evacuation personnel who conduct head couats once
evacuation has been completed. There is at least one trained evacuation person for each eight
employees in the workplace to provide adequate guidance and instruction at the time of an
emergency. The employees selected are trained in the complete workplace layout and the various
alternative escape routes from the workplace. All trained personnel are made aware of
employees with disabilities who may need extra assistance, such as using the buddy system, and
of hazardous areas to be avoided during emergencies. Before leaving, these employees check
rooms and other enclosed spaces in the workplace for employees who may be trapped or
otherwise unable to evacuate the area.

Once each evacuated group of employees have reached their evacuation destinations, each
trained evacuation employee:




¢ Takes roll of his or her group.

« Mazkes sure all persons are accounted for.

« Reports in {o a central checkpoint managed by the company coordinator or General Manager.
« Assumes role of department contact to answer questions.

Rescue and Medical Duty Assignments

Rescue and medical aid may be necessary during emergency situations. Circumstances calling .
for rescue andfor medical aid include:

« Electrical shock
« Falis

Dave Grossheim & Tom Stelzer are designated first aid responders who should provide medical
assistance within their capabilities to employees requiring it during an emergency situation.

Professional emergency services responding in an emergency will help with and ditect all rescue
and medical duty assignments upon their arrival on site.

Emergency Reporting Procedures
In the Event of a Fire

When a fire is detected, use the infercom to notify all employees. Then notify the city fire
department and General Manager.

The General Manager will perform assigned duties and will meet the fire department to assist
them in pufting out the fire. Head counts should be given to the city fire department Fire Chief

or fire fighter. No employees are to return to the building until the “all clear” is given by the
General Manager or the fire department Fire Chief.

The safe zone or meeting area is the:

e Back Parking Lot

In the Eveni of a Tornado

The Ayersville office has access to the National Weather Service, so when a tornado watch has
been issued by the National Weather Service, the weather page will sound, followed by a weather
bulletin with further information.




In the event of a tornado, it is the Ayersville Telephone Co. policy to provide emergency warning
and shelter. At the time the tornado warning is given, all employees are tesponsible for
evacuating to their assigned shelters in a tornado emergency. The shelter assignments for
tornados are:

¢ Tornado—General Manager’s Office

Outside Plant personnel should immediately seek safe shelter. If caught outside or in a vehicle,
lie flat in a nearby ditch or depression and cover your head with your hands. Do not try to outrun
a tornado in your car. Be aware of flying debris,

In the Event of Lightning

Most lightning fatalities and injuries occur when people are caught outdoors in the summer
months during the afternoon and evening. Outside Plant personnel are exposed to the risks of
lightning. If lightning is occurring and sturdy shelter is not available, get inside a hard top
automobile and keep the windows up. Avoid touching any metal. If caught outdoors and no
shelter is available find a low spot away from trees, fences, and poles. If you feel your skin tingle
or your hair stand on end, squat low to the ground on the balls of your feet. Place your hands
over your eats and your head between your knees. Make yourself the smallest target poss1ble and
minimize your contact with the ground. Do not lie down.

Trained Evacuation Personnel
Evacuation Personnel

All employees have been trained by Ayersville Telephone Co. to assist in safe and orderly
emergency evacuation for all types of emergency situations. These employees are to help direct
all employees during emergency evacuation, serve as a resoutce of information about emergency
procedures, and conduct head counts once evacuation has been completed.

Safety Responsibilities

Here at Ayersville Telephone Co, all employees/managers have safety responsibilities. They

must:

o Assist in developing a written emergency action plan for regular and after-hours work
conditions.

s Immediately notify the fire or police departments in the event of an emergency affecting their
office.

¢ Distribute procedures for reporting a fire, the location of fire exits, and evacuaiion routes to
each employee in their area.




e Distribute procedures for reporting a fire, bomb threat, or other emergency, the location of
fire exits, and evacuation routes to each employee.

s Conduct drills to acquaint the employees with fire procedures and to judge their
effectiveness.

» Satisfy all local fire codes and regulations as specified.

e See that designated employees ate trained in the use of fire extinguishers and the application
of medical first-aid techniques. '

s Keep key management personnel home telephone numbers in a safe place in the office for
immediate use in the event of a fire. Distribute a copy of the list to key persons to be retained
in their homes for use in communicating a fire oceurring during non-work hours,

* Decide to remain in or evacuate the workplace in the event of a fire.

» If evacuation is deemed necessary, the General Manager ensures that:

All employees are notified and a head count is taken to confirm total evacuation of all
employees,

When practical, equipment is placed and locked in storage rooms or desks for protection.

All records and property are arranged as necessary.

Training

At the time of an emergency, employees should know what type of evacuation is necessary and
what their role is in carrying out the plan. In cases where the emergency is very grave, total and
immediate evacuation of all employees is necessary. In other emergencies, a partial evacuation
of nonessential employees with a delayed evacuation of others may be necessary for continued
operation. We must be sure that employees know what is expected of them during and
emergency o assure their safety.

This document is not one for which casual reading is intended or will suffice in getting the
message across. If passed out as a statement to be read to oneself, some employees will choose
not to read it, or will not understand the plan’s importance. In addition, OSHA requires training
on the plan’s content,

A better method of communicating the emergency action plan is to give all employers a thorough
briefing and demonstration, Ayersville Telephone Co. has presented the plan in small meetings.




Types of Emergency Evacuations

At this company the following types of emergency evacuation exists as detailed earlier in this

plan:
e Fire
e Tornado

We have attached to this, sampies, or procedures we thought would ensure a better understanding
of our written program.

Emergency Operations - Loss of Service

Most service disruptions ate recoverable using standard troubleshooting methods and material
replacement actions to determine the root-cause and resolve the source of the problem. In some
rare cases, however, the service-affecting event is so catastrophic that extraordinary means are
required in order to restore service. These catastrophic situations are deemed disasters, and
include such events as:

Fire
Tornado
Earthquakes
Sabotage
Flood

In these cases, typically more than the switching system is lost. Buildings, power, inside/outside
plant facilities and transportation infrastructure may also be impacted.

Disaster Manager — Phil Maag General Manager

The potential for a disaster to simultaneously impact many facets of operation poses a
coordination challenge for the operating company. It is extremely important that the Disaster
Manager take in account the full spectrum of the operating company’s support requirements.
This would include an understanding of the capabilities and responsibilities of equipment
vendors, local authorities, governmental agencies, etc. which may potentially be involved. The
Disaster Manager will be responsible for testing and implementing the operating company’s
Disaster Plan, and has the authority to make significant decisions involving the purchase of
material and support labor, and possibly the replacement of capital equipment.

Disaster Procedures

In the event of a disaster employees shouid:




- notify their Disaster Manager in the event of a current or potential disaster

- contact GENBAND Customer Services Hot-Line (see below) in the event of a cunent or
potential disaster.

- notify the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio Outage Coordinator, Mr. James E. Sullivan, per
Minimum Telephone Service Standards.

GENBAND Disaster Recovery Support
1. General Disaster Recovery Process for GENBAND Equipment

GENBAND Technical Support Services organization provides Emergency/Disaster Recovery
procedures to assist those customers that have experienced an emergency condition due to
disaster. Upon notification of disaster conditions, a Recovery Team Lead is assigned to work
with the customer around the clock to manage the crisis while simultaneously deploying
equipment and personnel to the site as necessary so that functionality is expeditiously restored.

To resolve a critical service situation, GENBAND Technical Support offers emergency service
24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Technical Support will respond to the emergency condition and
work with the customer until the system is restored to operation based on the latest backup
data.

The preferred method of restoring the system is to provide replacement product from a
GENBAND manufacturing facitity to replace the original product at the customer site. The
alternative method is to ship product from anothér GENBAND location to the customer site.
GENBAND will take whatever actions are necessary to get the customer system back up and
running as soon as possible.

Timeframes provided in this document are targets only. GENBAND will work 24 hours a day to
restore service to a customer site as soon as possible.

A. If a disaster occurs, the customer should immediately call the GENBAND Technical
Assistance Center (TAC) hotline at 866-436-2263 and provide the information listed
below. The GENBAND Technical Assistance Center is available 24 hours a day.

a. The nature of the disaster (flood, fire, tornado, hurricane, etc.}
b. Contact names and numbers.

i. Times at which individuals can be contacted

i. Methods of contact

iii. Multiple numbers to facilitate communications

iv. Personnel authorized to make decisions during the crisis
v. Escalation point
¢. Anupdate of the steps the customer has taken in response to the disaster situation
d. A list of immediate requirements

'B. A GENBAND Technical Support Engineer (TSE) will immediately begin the escalation

process within GENBAND to notify management,

b vk




a. The TSE will maintain contact with the customer and begin recovery efforts until
a GENBAND Reécovery Team Lead takes over. .
C. Management will form a recovery team and assign a Recovery Team Lead,
D. The Recovery Team Lead will: '
4. TEstablish contact with the customer point of confact.
b. Work with the customer to assess physical damage.
¢. Work with customer to establish emergency recovery, both short and long term..
d. Work together with the customer to determine the responsibilities each will
assume inrestoring service in the most expedient method
e. Ditect GENBAND manufacturing to build a replacement system.as necessary.
f.. Digpatch instatiation personnel to the customer site.
E. Manufacturing will ship-the new system via the fastest method available.

Customer Service will arrange for installation personnel to remove damaged equipment,
tustall the new equipment when it arrives, and resfore the data to the latest biackup data,

2. Roles and Responsibilities

‘Table 1. GENBAND’s Roles and Responsibilities

Rele

Responsibility

Technical Services:

Recéive request for emergency service from the cus[omei
Evaluate the situation and immediately communicate to
management

Recommiend recovery actions

Determine the conliguration of the Product to be replaced,

Recovery Tedm Lead

Lead recovery teamvin coordination of all recovery efforts of
GENBAND equipment.

Installation Projeet Coordinate activities 1o install teplacement produgt and

Management: incorporate into the customer’s-network

Engineering. Provide design expertise as needed 1o ensure the customer can.
be retarned to state prior te the customer disaster,

Manufacturing Manufacture the replacement product and ship to the
appropriate address.

Management Decide on source of replacement products and serviees (Lab or

Manufacturing)




Table 2: Customer’s Roles and Responsibilities

Role Responsibility

Site Point of Contact s Provide configuration information and backup medivm for
reinstallation,
& Coordinate all local recovery efforts.

Overall Disaster Point | &  Ensure nceessary resources are available lo recover system
of Contact functionality. '

Autherization ¢ Authorization of purchase.of produet, inaterial and
deployment support labor i response to disaster sitvation.

Assumptions

In disaster sifuations where the customer’s building and/or facilities are destroyed,
GENBAND replacement hardware and software will be provided up to and including the
cable necessaty to connect to the GENBAND system. The line of demarcation is assumed to
be the customer’s end of the- GENBAND cables.

Air travel and a safe customer site must be available to meel minimum delivery
cotfrnitments.

Customer regularly archives the database in secure off-site locations likely to survive most
disaster situations.
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Battery/Generator Back-Up

Switching offices are normally equipped with generators and batteries to keep them running
should they lose commercial power. Portable generators are also an option. Small remote
switching nodes have portable generator back-up. The Ayersville Telephone Company office is
equipped with battery back-up and emergency generator back-up.
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Disaster Relief Plan — Waive of House {6 House Connection Charges

Once Ayersville Telephone Company has activated its Disaster Relief Plan for customers whose
homes or businesses were destroyed by fire, tornado, etc., connection charges will be waived for
customers who move their phone service to a temporary or permanent location while their home
or business is being repaired or rebuilt.

Ayersville Emergency Contact List

Name Title Phone No.

Phil Maag General Manager (419)395-2222 - W
(419)532-2121 - H
(419 438-0357 - C
pmaag@ayersvilletelco.com
Dave Grossheim Combination Technician (419) 395-2222 - W
(419) 395-2144 - H
(419) 438-0281 - C
ayersiar@pbright.net
Tom Stelzer Central Office Technician (419) 395-2222 - W
(419) 782-4091 - H
(419) 438-0563 - C
ayersdco@bright.net
Dion Mefferd Combination/IT Technician (419) 3952222 - W
(419) 395-2200 - H
(419) 438-3693 - C
dion(@ayersvilletelco.com
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PUCO Emergency Plan

4901:1-6-31 Emergency and Outage Operations - ' Effective: 1/20/2011

(A)

(C}

(D)

(E)

Each facilities-based local exchange carrier {LEC) shall design, operate, and maintain its facilities to
continue to provide customers with the ability to originate and receive calls at all times, The
commission will uliize existing FCC rules applicable to emergency and oulage operations.
Companies shall submit cutage reports utifizing, at the company's discretion, either existing FCC
reports or a format determined by the commission.

Each facilities-based LEC shall submit, within two hours of discovery, to the commission's outage

coordinator and when approptiate, the news media In the affected area, a notification that it has
experienced an outage, whenever that outage occurs on any facility that it owns, operates, leases or
otherwise ufilizes and is both:

{1} Expected to last for a period in excess of thirly minutes.

{2} Potentially affects at least nine hundred thousand user minutes in the incumbent local calling
area.

Each facilities-based LEC shall report, by telephone or electronic means, a disruption of 9-1-1
services, which impairs 9-1-1 sefvice within a given county 9-1-1 system, immedizately o each county
9-1-1 public safety answering point, to the Chio 9-1-1 coordinator, and to the news media in the
affected area, when appropriate.

Each facilities-based LEC experiencing a loss of communications or selective routing to a public
safety answetring point, as a result of an oulage described under paragraphs (B) and {(C) of this rule,
shall also notify, as soon as possible, by telephone or electronic means, any official who has been
designated by the management of the affected 9-1-1 facility as the LEC's contact person for
communication outages at that faciity; and the LEC shall convey to that person all available
information that may be useful to the management of the affected facility in mitigating the effects of
the outage on efforts to communicate with that facllity.

Each facilltles-based LEC experiencing an outage described under paragraphs (B) and (C} of this
rule, shall electronicaily submit to the commission's outage coordinator the same information as that
provided to the FCC or the following information:

{1} A notification that it has experienced a outage, which shall include the name of the reporting
entity, the date and time of the onset of the outage, a brief description of the problem, the
particular service affected, the geographic area affected by the outage, the number of
customers affected, an estimate of when the service, including 9-1-1, wil! be restored, and a
contact name and telephone number by which the commission's outage ccordinator may
contact the reporting entity.

{2) Notiater than seventy-iwo hours after discovering the outage, an initlal communications outage
report, which shall include all pertinent information then available on the outage and shall be
submitted in good faith.

(3} Not later than thirty days after discovering the outage, the provider shall submit electronically a
final communications outage report, which shall include all pertinent information on the outage,
including any information that was not contained in, of that has changed from that provided in,
the initial report.
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(F} Each facilities-based LEC shall develop, implement, and maintain an emergency plan and make it
available for review by commission staff. The plan shall include, but not be limited to, all of the
following:

(M

(2)

3

(8)

(9)

Procedures for maintalning and annually updating a2 list of those customers who have
subscribed to the federal telecommunications service priority program, as identified in 47 C.F.R.
64, appendix A.

Procedures for priority treatment in restoring out-of-service trouble of an emergency nature for
customets with a documented medicat or life-threatening condition.

{n addition to the felecommunications service priority program, each LEC shall develop policies
and procedures regarding those customers who requite priority treatment for out-of-service
clearance. Such procedures shall inciude a table of restoration priority, including, but not limited
to, subscribers such as police and fire stations, hospitals, key medical personnel, and other
utilities.

Procedures for restoring service to priority critical facllities customers.

ldentification and annual updates of all of the facilities-based LEC's critical faciliies and
reasonable measures to protect its personnel and facilfties.

Assessments and evaluations of telecommunications facifities available to provide back-up
service capabilities.

Procedures for after-action assessments and reporting following activation of any part of the
emergency plan. An afier-action report will be written and will include lessons learned,
deficiencies in the response to the emergency, and deficiencies in the emergency plan.

A current list of the names and telephone numbers of the facilities-based LECs' emergency
service personnel 1o contact and coordinate with in the event of any real or anticipated ocal or
national threats to its ability to provide telecommunications service.

A current fist of the names and telephone numbers of the facilities-based LEC's emergency
service personnel that is made available to the commission's emergency coordinator, upon

request,

{10} A continuity of operations plan to assure continuance of minimum essential functions during a

large scale event in which staffing is reduced. Such plans shall provide for.

{a) Plan activation triggers such as the world health organization's pandemic phase alett
levels, widespread transmission within the United States, or a case at one or more
locations within Ohio.

{b) Identification of a pandemic coordinator and team with defined roles and responsibilities for
preparedness and response planning.

(¢} identification of minimal essenfial functions, minimal staffing required to maintain such
essential functions, and personnel resource pools required o ensure continuance of those
functions in progressive stages associated with a declining workforce.

(d) Identification of essential employees and critical inputs (e.g., raw materials, equipment,
suppliers, subcontracior services/products, and logistics) required to maintain business
operations by logation and function,

(e) Policies and procedures to address personal protection initiatives.




(i Policies and procedures to maintain lines of communication with the public utilities
commission of Ohio during a declared emergency.

{G) Each facilities-based LEC shall amend its emergency plan in accordance with the findings idehtiﬁed
in the after-action assessment report required under paragraph (F)(7) of this ruie.

R.C. 119.032 Review Dates:___11/30/2015

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 4927.03
Rule Amplifies: 4827.04

Prior Effective Dates: None




- TELEPHONE COMPANY

27932 Watson Road
Defiance, OH 43512

(419) 395-2222

lune 6, 2016

i, Phillip D. Maag , hereby certify that __Aversville Telephone Company

pricing of voice services is no more than two standard deviations above the applicable national average
urban rate for voice service as specified in the most recent public notice issued by the Wireline

Commission Bureau.

Respectfully,

g d

Phillip D. Maag
Secretary-Treasurer




COMMUNICATIONS

amelacom. partner

27932 Watson Road
Defiance, OH 43512

(419) 395-2222

June 6, 2016

|, __Phillip D, Magg , hereby certify that _Ayersville Telephone Company dbia

Aversville Comimunijcatiofis _pricing of voice sérvices is no moré than two standard deviatioris above the
applicable national average urban rate for voice service as specified in the most recent public notice

issued by the Wireling Commission Bureau.

Respectfully, -

Phillip D. Mahg
Secretary-Treasurer




AyersvilleTelephone Company
Certification for Lifeline Telephone Service

Plan Description

Lifeline is a government program that provides a monthly discount on home or mobile telephone services.
Only ONE Lifeline discount is aliowed per househoid. Members of a household are not permitted to
receive Lifeline service from multipls telephone companies.

Your household is everyone who lives together at your address as one economic unit {including children
and people who are not retated to you).

The adults you live with are part of your ecenomic unlt if they contribute to and share in the income and
expenses of the househoid. An adult is any person 18 years of age or older, or an emancipated minor (a
person under age 18 who is legally considered to be an aduit). Household expenses include food, health
care expenses (such as medical bills) and the cost of renting or paying a mortgage on your place of
residence (a house or apartment, for example) and utilities (including water, heat and electricity).

Income includes salary, public assistance benefits, social security payments, pensions, unemployment
compensation, veteran’s henefits, inheritances, alimony, child support payments worker's compensation
benefits, gifts, and lottery winnings.

Spouses and domestic pariners are considered to be part of the same household. Children under the
age of 18 living with their parents or guardians are considered to be part of the same household as their
parents or guardians. If an aduit has no income, or minimal income, and lives with someone who
provides financial support to that adult, both people are considered part of the same household.

Plan Details
* Monthly local service discount is $9.25
¢ Custom and CLASS features are at standard rates
« - Unlimited local calling

e Long Distance available on egual access basis




AyersvilleTelephone Company
Certification for Lifeline Telephone Service

Lifeline is a government program that provides a monthly discount on home or mobile telephone services.
Only ONE Lifeline discount is alfowed per household. Members of a household are not permitted to
receive Lifeline service from multiple telephone companies. In Ohic an additional credit for installation
charges also applies once In a 12 month period,

Date:

Applicant Information:

Full Name:

Date of Birth:

Last Four Digits of Socia! Security Number;

Residential Address:
Number and Street:

City

State

Zip Code
{No PO Boxes permitted}

Check one:
The address listed is my permanent address

The address listed Is my temporary address

Please Check One:
Initial Application

Annual Certification Continued Eligibility

{Company name) Lifeline Telephone Service is dependent on the s participation in one or more of the
programs listed below, or that your household income is af or below 150% of the federal poverty level,

1. | participate in the following programs (check all that apply):
____Home Energy Assistance Program (LHEAP, HEAP and E-HEAP)
____ Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program (SNAP)/Food Stamps
—_ Supplemental Security Income-Aged (SS1)
___ Medical Assistance under Chapter 5111 of the Ohio Revised Code (Medicaid) or any
program that might supplant Medicaid
___Federal Public Housing/Section 8
___ Onio Works/Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
____ National School Lunch Program’s Free Lunch Program (NSL)
___ General assistance, including disability assistance (DA)
OR
| hereby certify that (check if this applies to you).

Household annual gross income is at or below 150% of the poverty level (see chart below)




AyersvilleTelephone Company
Certification for Lifeline Telephone Service

2013 Estimated Annual Income Requirements
for a Household at or Below 150% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines
Per Health and Humnar Setvices — Federal Register 1/24/2013

Persons in 48 Contiguous States
Family Unit and D.C.
1 $17,235.00
2 $23,265.00
3 $28,295.00
4 $35,325.00
5 $41,355.00
6 $47,385.00
7 $53,415.00
8 $59,445.00
For each
additionai 96.030.00
person, add

To prove that you qualify for income eligibility we will need a copy of at least one of the following
documents:
A prior year's federal or state tax retum
Current income statement from smployer or W-2
Three consecutive months worth of the most current pay stubs
The most recent Social Security statement of benefils
The most recent Veteran's Administration statement of benefits
The most recent retirement/pension statement of benefits
The most recent Unamployment or Worker's Compensation statement of benefits
Any other legal document that would show your current income (such as a divorce
decree or child support document)

* & & & & & & &

2. Inthe future, if | no longer participate in at least one of the programs listed in ltem 1 or the
conditions in item 2 change, | will notify ( company name) within 30 days that | am no longer
eligible for Lifeline Telephone Service.

I {we} affix, under penalty of perjury, thal the foregeing representations are true.

Applicant's Name (Please Print)

Telephone Number:

Applicant's Signature Date







Company Ayersville Telephone Company
Study Area Code 300588
Supplemental Data For: Line 3010b - 5 Year Plan Milestone Certification

This certification is embedded within the 5 year plan update that has been filed.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SPECIALISTS

B

SHULTZ HUBER

AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
of Ayersville Telephone Company
Defiance, Ohio

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financia! statements of Ayersville Telephone Company (an
Chio corporation) which comprise the comparative balance sheets as of December 31, 2015
and 2014, and the related comparative statements of income and comprehensive income,
retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsihility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on these financial staiements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and petform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

595 Fox Road Barbara 1. Kohnen, CFA ¢ Anthony L. Gericke, CPA ¢ Tyson L. Stuckey, CPA, CVA, MAFM ¢ Robin K, Brinegar, CFA.
Vanr Wert, QOhio 453897 Terry L. Melton, CPA, MA ¢ Timothy | Yoder, CPA, MBA ¢ 1] Muse, CPA, CGMA
419-238-2000

FAX 419-238-2976 hMembers of AXCPA Private Companies Practice Section

www.sha-cpa.com Offices located in Archbold, Brvar, Defiance, 5t Marys and Van Wert




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Ayersville Telephone Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

April 14, 2016 M ot éﬂdﬁﬁ% e,

Van Wert, Ohio

& SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES, INC. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS




AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Current Assets

Cash (Exhibit D)

Short-Term Investments
Telecommunications Accounts Receivable
Other Accounts Receivable

Materials and Supplies

Prepaid Federal income Tax

Other Prepaid Expenses

Deferred Federal Income Tax

Total Current Assets
Telephone Plant
Land
Plant and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Total Telephone Plant
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Net Telephone Plant
Other Assets
Notes Receivable
Investment in Affiliated Companies
Investment in Nonaffiliated Companies
Investment in Nonreguiated Activities (Schedule [)
GigEPAC Right-of-Use Fee

Deposits

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report

2015 2014

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES. INC. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable-Taxes
Customer Deposits

Accrued Federal Income Tax
Other Accrued Taxes

Other Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue

Total Current Liabilities
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

GigEPAC Deferred Revenue
Deferred Federal Income Taxes

Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Stockholders' Equity
Common Stock
Additional Paid-In Capital
Retained Earnings {Exhibit C)

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Total Stockholders' Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Exhibit A

2015 2014

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

Operating Revenues
Local Network Service Revenues
Network Access Revenues
Miscellaneous Revenues
Uncollectible Revenues
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Plant Specific Operations Expenses
Plant Nonspecific Operations Expenses
Depreciation Expense
Customer Operations Expenses
Corporate Operations Expenses
Total Operating Expenses
Income Before Taxes
Operating Taxes
Federal Income Tax
Deferred Income Taxes
Other Operating Taxes

Total Operating Taxes

Net Operating Income

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report

& SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES. INC. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Exhibit B

2015 2014

Nonoperating Income and Expenses
Dividend Income
interest Income
Rent income
Miscellanecus Income
Interest Expense
Gain on Sale of Short-Term investments
Nonoperating Income before Income Taxes
Nonoperating Federal Income Tax Expense

Net Nonoperating Income

Net Income from Regulated Services

Income from Affiliated Comianies iNet of Deferred Tax
Expense of in 2014)
Income from Nonregulated Activities (Schedule 1)
NET INCOME (Exhibits C and D)
Other Comprehensive income, Net of Income Tax

Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES. INC, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
B-




AYERSVILLE TELEFHONE COMPANY _ Exhibit C
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year
Net Income (Exhibit B)
Dividends Declared

Retained Earnings, End of Year (Exhibit A)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES. INC. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Exhibit [»
AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FCR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

20156 2014

Operating Activities
Net Income (Exhibit B}
Adjustment to Reconcile Net Income To
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Biling Conversion Fee Amortization
Provision for Deferred Federal Income Tax
Income from Affiliated Companies

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabifities:
 (Increase} Decrease in Telecomm Accounts Receivable

(Increase} Decrease in Other Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Materials and Supplies
(Increase} Decrease in Prepaid Federal Income Tax
(Increase) Decrease in Other Prepaid Expenses
Decrease in GigEPAC Right-of-Use Fee
Decrease in Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Accounts Payable-Taxes
increase in Customer Deposits
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Federal Income Tax
(Decrease) in Other Accrued Taxes
Increase in Other Accrued Expenses
(Decrease) in Deferred Revenuss

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Purchase of Plant and Equipment
Cost of Removal of Plant Charged to Accumulated Depreciation
Salvage Value of Plant included in Accumulated Depreciation
Increase in Other Short-Term investments
Net Cash Used in investing Activities
Financing Activities
Purchase of Common Stock
Dividends Paid
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
Increase in Cash

Beginning Cash Balance

Ending Cash Balance (Exhibit A}

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statementis and Independent Auditor's Report

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES. INC, | CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Operations and of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of significant accounting policies of Ayersville Telephone Company is presented to assist in
understanding the Company's financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations
of the Company’s management, who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting
policies conform to accounting principles in the United States of America and have been consistently applied
in the preparation of the financial statements.

Summary of Operations

The Company provides, as authorized by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCO), local exchange
telephone services, as well as interexchange access and billing and collection services for several long-
distance telecommunications companies, to subscribers in Ayersville, Ohio and the surrounding rural area.
The PUCO regulates the operations and rates charged by the Company for local telephone services and
interexchange access services. The PUCQO does not have jurisdiction over the rates or operations of the
Company's nonregulated business (involving high-speed Internet access, video service, and the sales and
leasing of customer premise telephone equipment and customer premise telephone wiring) or billing and
collection services.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company provides, as authorized by the PUCQ, local exchange telephone services, in addition to
interexchange access and billing and collection services for several long-distance telephone companies, to
subscribers in Ayersville, Ohio and the surrounding rural area. Substantially alt revenues are derived from
providing these specific services to this geographic area.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management fo make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the comparative statements of cash flows, the Company considers all shori-term debt
securities purchased with a maturity of three months or iess to be cash equivalents.

Telecommunications and Other Accounts Receivable

Amounts due from local exchange telephone subscribers are recorded as felecommunications accounts
receivable, while amounts due from long-distance telecommunications companies are included in other
accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are reflected at their net realizable value.

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts egual to the estimated uncollectible amounts.
The Company's estimate is based on histerical collection experience, a review of the current status of trade
accounts receivable and management's determination of the credit-worthiness of the customers.

Trade receivables are due within 15 days of the issuance of the invoice to local exchange telephone
subscribers and within 30 days of the issuance of the invoice to long-distance telecommunications
companies. Past due accounts over 30, 60 and 90 days are monitored regularly, and considered in
management’s evaluation of charging off uncollectible accounts receivable. Upon determination by
management that an account receivable is likely not collectible through the normal course of business,
including collection procedures, the uncollectible account receivable is charged against the allowance for
doubtful accounts.

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES, INC. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Operations and of Significant Accounting Policies--Continued

Telecommunications and Other Accounts Receivable--Continued

Finance charges on past due accounts receivable begin to accrue upon passage of the due date, and are
recognized in income pericdically as they are charged to the customers’ accounts. Trade receivables are
placed on non-accrual status only upon being charged off to the allowance for doubtful accounts or upon
receipt of a valid bankruptcy court order. Resumption of finance charges on the account occurs upon
determination that the probability of collection has improved, including, but not limited to notification by a
bankrupicy court that such action is acceptable. .

The Company recognizes all revenue earned through the end of the year regardless of when customers are
billed. Fees for all services are billed and recognized as revenue when the service is rendered. Revenue
eamed but not billed wa as of December 31, 2014,

Interest income on notes receivable is recognized when earned. Interest on non-accrual loans is not
recognized until such time as the note is removed from non-accrual status. No notes receivable were past

due more than 90 days as of December 31, 2015.

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or market after providing for
obsolescence.

Telephone Plant

Telephone plant in service is carried at cost. Improvements and betterments to equipment that materially
extend the lives or usefulness of the related item are capitalized, while routine maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. The Company provides for depreciation on a straight-iine basis at annual rates which
will amortize the depreciable property over the estimated useful lives. The depreciation rates approved by
the PUCO are as follows:

Motor Vehicles

Other Work Equipment

Buildings

Furniture

Office Support Equipment

Company Communications Equipment
Company Telephones

General Purpose Computers

Digital Electronic Switching Hardware
Digital Electronic Switching Software
Circuit Equipment

Poles

Aerial Cable

Aerial Cable - Station Connections
Underground Cable (Copper and Fiber)
Buried Cable - Copper

Buried Cable - Fiber

Buried Cable - Station Connections
Conduit Systems

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES. INC. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Operations and of Significant Accounting Policies--Continued

Telephone Plant--Continued

In addition, the Company depreciates its nonregulated customer premise telephone equipment, routers and
switches at the rate of

For income tax purposes, depreciation is provided for using permissible accelerated depraciation methods
and lives.

Advertising.
The Company’s policy is to expense advertising costs when incurred.
Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist
of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the bases of telephone
piant, investment in affiliated companies, and marketable equities securities for financial and income tax
reporting. The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return consequences of those
differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.

The Company has evaluated the impact of the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board ASC
740-10-50, “Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes”, on its financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows. As a result of this evaluation, the Company has not made and does not anticipate any
adjustments that would result in a material change to its financial position. The Company is no longer
subject to examination by federal, state or city tax jurisdictions for years prior to 2012,

Note 2 - Investment in Affiliated Companies

The Company reports its investment in an affiliated company, Defiance Holdings, LLC, using the equity
methed. Defiance Holdings, LLC was created in April 2009 by the Company and two other independent
telephone companies for the purpose of providing Internet access services. At December 31, 2015 and
2014, the Company o ember equity units of Defiance Holdings, LLC, which represents a one-third
interest, with a cost o Defiance Holdings, LLC's summarized financial information is as follows as
of, and for the year ended December 31,:

2015 2014

Assefs
Liabilities
Revenues
Expenses
Net income

The Company has r nized its_one-third interest of the net income of Defiance Holdings, LLC in the
amount of n 2014,

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCTIATES. INC. CERTIETED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 2 - Investment in Affiliated Companies--Continued

Defiance Holdings, LLC contracts with the Company for management an ing services. Those
services totaledg_ for the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the year ended

December 31, 2014, with [Jfldve to the Company as of December 31, 2015 and no balance due as of
December 31, 2014. Two subsidiaries of Defj Holdings, LLC also purchase telephone lines iredits
from the Company. Those services totaled Wfor the year ended December 31, 2015 and M‘for
the year ended December 31, 2014, with no balance due to the Company as of December 31, 2014 and
2014.

The Company reports its investment in an affiiated company, SAA bright.net, Inc., using the equity method.
SAA bright.net, Inc. was created in March 1995 by the Company and fwo other independent telephone
companies for the purpose of providing Internet access services. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
Company owns fourteen shares of common stock of SAA bright.net, Inc., which represents a one-third
interest, with a cost of $196,000. SAA bright.net, Inc.’s summarized financial information is as follows as of,
and for the years ended December 31,

2015 214

Assets
Liabilities
Revenues
Expenses
Net income

Th mpany has recognized its one-third interest of the net income of SAA bright.net, Inc. in the amount of
in 2015 and in 2014.

The Company purchases Internet connectivity and support from SAA bright.net, Inc. Those costs totaled

in 2015 ancilll in 2014, with no balance due SAA bright.net, Inc. as of December 31, 2015
and 2014. SAA bright.net, Inc. purchases from or contracts for services with the Company for telephone
service, collocation space and office space. Those services totaled [N y<2ar ended December
31, 2015 and ior the year ended December 31, 2014, with no balance due to the Company as of

December 31, 2015 and 2014. SAA bright.net, Inc. aiso contracts with the C ices such as
management, accountin stomer service. Those services totaled ar ended
December 31, 2015 and for the year ended December 31, 2014, wit Company

as of December 31, 2015 and s of December 31, 2014.

Note 3 - Investment in Nonaffiliated Companies; Related Party Transactions

The Company reports its available for sale investment in nonaffiliated companies, Horizon Telcom, Inc. and
Leader Technologies, Inc., at fair value.

Estimated
Criginal Fair
Cost Value

Leader Technologies, Inc.
Horizon Telcom, Inc.
Class Al Shares
Class B— ] Shares
Total

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 3 - Investment in Nonaffiliated Companies; Related Party Transactions—Continued

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income decrease in 2015 and increased- in 2014 due
to the net after-fax effect of adjusting the original cost of the investments in Leader Techhologies

Horizon Telcom, Inc. fo reflect the estimated fair value of as of December 31, 2015 and ﬂ
as of December 31, 2014 in accordance with FASB ASC 320.

The Company reports its available for sale investment in the nonaffiliated company, Com Net, Inc., at cost as
to determine fair value of thiggd ent is impracticable. The Comp owns cone share of Com Net, Inc.
common stock with a cost of an hares of Com Net, Inc| cumulative preferred stock with a
cost of per share. The common stock shareholders of Com Net, inc. consist of independent
telephone companies and an electric cooperative.

The Company purchases Signaling System 7 connectivity, billing services and video transmission from Com
Net, Inc. Those costs totaledﬂfor the year ended December 31, 2015 and [ for the year
ended December 31, 2014, with a balance due to Com Net, Inc. of |l as of December 31, 2015 and
as of December 31, 2014. The Col lso purchases dedicated transport circuits from
Independents Fiber Network. Those costs totaledWor the year ended December 31, 2015 and
for the year ended December 31, 2014, with no balance due to Independents Fiber Network as of December
31, 2014 andlll as of December 31, 2014. Lastly, the Company provides marketing, billing and collection
services to Bright Long Distance Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Com Net, Inc.__Settlements paid to Bright
Long Distance Ltd. were INSENEBtor the year ended December 31, 2015 and NI for the year ended
December 31, 2014, with no balance due to Bright Long Distance Ltd. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Note 4 - Other Investments

The Company is invested in common stock of various publicly-traded companies, stock mutual funds, bonds,
and a money fund. Management ' i ts as available for sale. As of December 31,
2015, these investments totaled W as of December 31, 2 fair value.
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income decreased $42,636 in 2015 and decreased in 2014 due
to the net after-tax effect of adjusting the original costs of these investments to reflect their estimated fair

values. Dugj December 31, 2015 and 2014, certain securities were sold for total
proceeds of respectively, with net realized gains earned against original cost on those
sales o respectively.

Note 5 - Income Taxes

The net current deferred federal income tax benefit and the net deferred federal income tax liability reflected
on the balance sheet includes the following components:

2015 2014

Deferred Tax Asset
Net Current Deferred Tax Benefit

Deferred Tax Liability
Net Deferred Tax Liability

@ SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 5 - Income Taxes—Continued

The deferred tax assets result from faster write-off for financial statement purposes than tax purposes of
certain fees. The deferred tax liability resuits from the use of accelerated methods of depreciation of
property and equipment and differences in values for marketable equity securities and investment in affiliated
companies. A tax rate of. has been used for deferred tax purposes.

Federal income tax expense related to nonreiulated activities was_ in 2014.

Deferred federal income tax expense was 2015 and zero in 2014 for nonregulated activities.
Note 6 - Accounts Receivable, Allowance for Doubtful Accounts; Concentrations of Credit Risk

An allowance for doubtful accounts, those amounts of accounts receivable estimated that may be
uncollectible, is provided for in the financial statements.

No receivables are held for sale. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no receivables were pledged as
coliateral for borrowings. No accounts receivable were on non-accrual status as of December 31, 2015 and
2014,

The allowance for doubtful accounis and the amounts of trade receivables that are 90 days or more past due
were as follows as of December 31,
2015 2014

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Trade Receivables Past Due 90 Days
or More

Note 7 - Note Receivable

The Company received a promissory note from Defiance Holdings, LLC dated September 21, 2010 in the
amount th The interest rate is Il per annum and interest payments are due March 1, June 1,
September 1, and December 1. The Company received an additional promissory note from Defiance
Holdings, LLC dated December 20, 2011 in the amour{ I The interest rate is M per annum and
interest payments are due March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1. Both notes are due on demand,
but no earlier than January 1, 2017.

Note 8 - Common Stock

The PUCO has authorized the issuance of Il shares of common stock with a par value of [ per share.
Af December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were B :nd B shares issued and outstanding, respectively.
During 2015, there werellshares of common stock submitted for redemption, 14 shares of common stock
submitted for transfer, and [l shares of common stock issued. During 2014, there were [l shares of
common stock submitted for redemption,- shares of common stock submitted for transfer, and M shares of
commaon stock issued. The Company maintains a stock redemption and transfer policy that allows the Board
of Directors to restrict the number of shares that can be held by an immediate family household and
ownership to only those who are natural persons, customers and live in the Company's service area.

Dividends payable as of December 31, 2015 were - and as of December 31, 2014 were -
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 9 - Profit Sharing Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution profit sharing plan that covers substantially all employees.
The Company confributes ten percent of participating employees’ compensation to the plan. The Company's
contributions to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were H
respectively.

Note 10 - Cash Flows Information

The Company had noncash financing transaW regutated plant and equipment
and nonregulated leased station apparatus of in 2014.

Cash paid in 2015 and 2014 for interest was- respectively. Cash paid for federal income tax
wa

in 2014.

Note 11 - Uninsured Cash Balances

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had cash balances totaling _
respectively, in excess of insured limits at FDIC insured institutions.

Noie 12 - Commitments
The Company is providing switching services to a broadband communications transport entity formed by
local exchange carriers in Northwestern Ohio. The Company is obligated to provide tandem switching

services fo this entity until January 1, 2016.

Note 13 - Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities
and to determine fair value disclosures of investments in debt and equity securities that are classified as
available-for-gale on a recurring basis.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Determination of Fair Value

Under the Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, the Company
bases its fair value on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It is the Company’s policy to

& SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES, INC. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 13 - Fair Value Measurements—Continued

maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair
value measurements, in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. Fair value measurements for assets and
liabilities where there exists limited or no observable market data and, therefore, are based primarily upon
management’s own estimates, are often calculated based on current pricing policy, the economic and
competitive environment, the characteristics of the asset or liability and other such factors. Therefore, the
results cannot be determined with precision and may not be realized in an actual sale or immediate
settlement of the asset or liability. Additionally, there may be inherent weaknesses in any calculation
technigue, and changes in the underlying assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of future
cash flows, that could significantly affect the results of current or future value.

Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value and

for estimating fair value for financial instruments not recorded at fair value (disclosures required by the Fair
Value Measurements Topic of the FASE Accounting Standards Codification).

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term financial instruments, accounts recejvable and accounts payable
The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that are classified as available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a
recurring basis. When quoted market prices are unchservable, management uses quotes from independent
pricing vendors based on independent pricing models or other model-based valuation technigues such as
the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating and other factors such as credit
loss assumptions. The pricing vendors may provide the Company with valuations that are based on
significant uncbservable inputs, and in those circumstances the Company classifies the fair value
measurements of the investment securities as Level 3, Management conducted a review of its pricing vendor
to validate that the inputs used in that vendor's pricing process are deemed to be market observable or
unobservable as defined in the standard. Based on the review performed, management believes that the
valuations used in its financial statements are reasonable and are appropriately classified in the fair value
hierarchy.

& SHULTZ HUBER AND ASSOCIATES. INC.
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AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Note 13 - Fair Value Measurements—Continued

Assets and Liabilities Measured and Recognized at Fair Value on a Recuring Basis

The table below presents the amounts of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as
of December 31, 2015:

Tcial {Level 1} {Level 2} (Level 3)
Investments in nonaffiliated companies
Investments in equity securities

The table below presents the amounts of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as
of December 31, 2014:

Total (Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Investments in nonaffiliated companie
Investments in equity securities

Note 14 - Accumulated Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated Comprehensive Loss changed during 2015 and 2014 as follows:

2015 2014

Beginning Balance
Comprehensive Income
Balance, End of Year

Note 15 - Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 11, 2016, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued. There are no subsequent events fo disclose.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BUSINESS DEVELOTMENT SPECIALISTS

HUBER

AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
on Supplementary Information

To the Board of Directors
of Ayersville Telephone Company
Defiance, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of Ayersville Telephone Company, as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and our report thereon dated April 14, 2016, which
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears on page 1. Our audits
were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The comparative nonregulated balance sheets of Ayersville Telephone Company as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related comparative nonregulated income statements for
the years then ended are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in ali material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

il 14, 2016 , _ YL .
Van Wert Ohio M b ¢ leonectlio; Jhe.,

503 Fox Road Barbava L. Kohnen, CPA + Anthony L. Gericke, CPA # Tysen L. Stuckey, CPA, CVA, MAFM ¢ Robin K. Brinegar, CTA
Van Wert, Ohio 45891 Tery L Melion, CPA, MA ¢ Himothy L Yoder, CPA, MBA + T ] Muse, CPA, CGMA

419-238-2000

FAX 419-238-2970 Members of A1CPA Private Companies Practice Section
W\»\‘W.bs]m—tpa,wm Offices bocated 1n Archbeld, Bryan, Defiance, 5L Marys and Van Wert



Schedule |
AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
COMPARATIVE NONREGULATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

Assets
tinventory
Telephones and Other Station Apparatus
Routers and Switches |
Accumulated Depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

Liabilities and Equity
Accounts Payable to Regulated Business
Transferred from Regulated Business
Accumulated Deficit, Beginning of Year
Net Income
Accumulaied Deficit, End of Year

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Exhibit A)

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information
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Schedule I
AYERSVILLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
COMPARATIVE NONREGULATED INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

Revenues

DSL Revenue
Video Revenue
" Lease Income
Telephone, DSL Modems, and

Customer Premises Wiring Sales
Cost of Sales '
Other Income

Bundie Discounts

Total Revenues
Expenses

Video Pregramming Expense
Video Equipment Expense

Video Whoiesale Expense

Other Video Expense

DSL Local Access Expense

DSL Bandwidth Expense

DSL Wholesale Expense

DSL Modem Expense

Other DSL Expense

Wages and Benefits Expense
Repair Expense

Overhead Expense

Depreciation Expense

Federal Income Tax Expense
Deferred Federal Income Tax Expense
Commercial Activities Tax Expense

Total Expenses

NET INCOME (Exhibit B)

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information
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Local Rate Floor Data Collection

Logged in User: Christopher Ulmer

Study Area: AYERSVILLE TEL CO (ID: 300588)

Study Area - Exchange Level Data for Local Rate Floor
- ‘ . Instructions
Agent Certification
. N Data Certification (No Rates Less Than $21.93)
Data Coliection Period: [201606 v Data Certification (With Rates Less Than $21.93)
. Print Submitted Data in PDF format
Print Submitted Data in Excel format

(1D,

[First Middle Last]
| [999-999-9999]

Email: ‘pmzag@ayersvifletsico.com |

Enter all exchange/rate zone level rates and their corresponding lines below, where the sum of columns C-F is less
than $21.93.

This data will be used to calculate the impact of the local rate floor on your company's High Cost Support.

This system is clased for data collection for this period

(A) (B) {C} (D) (E) (F) (G) (H}
Exchange Class Of Residentizl State State Mandatory Rate Residential
Name/Zone Service Local Subscriber | Universal | Extended Total Lines
Name Service Line Service Area Subject
Charge Charge Fee Service to Floor
Chargs {Sum of
C-F)
I ) | 1 R L D [+

. [To enter additional rows of data, click on the + button.]
If the data form is left blank, select one of the boxes below:

I | Check here if your company receives or is projected to receive High Cost Loop Support or High Cost Model Support in 2016,
but has no monthly residential rates (plus charges listed above) less than $21.93 (certification required)

I¥ICheck here if your company is not projected to receive High Cost Loop Support or High Cast Model Support in 2016

LI Check here if you plan to submit local rate floor data directly to USAC
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